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Southington Public Schools
Superintendent’s Annual Report — 2011-2012

SUPERINTENDENT’S EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Southington Public Schools had an extraordinary 2011-2012 school year!

Despite the continued struggle with the economy and the nation’s challenge of finding

meaningful employment for its workforce, the town of Southington’s commitment to their next

generation of leaders was strongly demonstrated by:

e  Retaining all staff and enhancing K-12 programming;

e Supporting an Extended All-Day Kindergarten program opportunity for youngsters in need
of readiness skills;

e  Passing, by well over a 2-to-1 margin, the successful $85,000,000 Renovate-to-New Middle
School Building Project;

e Making a strong commitment to the upgrade of the district’s technology infrastructure,

The private funding stream from The Community Foundation of Greater New Britain was
instrumental in the continued growth of the Family Resource Center. The Family Resource
Center, the Extended Day Kindergarten program, combined with the Early Childhood
Collaborative partnership remains the foundation of readiness for all children in Southington.

The four-year literacy partnership with Columbia University continues to show strong measures
of success as Grade K-8 scores improved for the fifth consecutive school year. Under the
leadership of the Assistant Superintendent and the Language Arts Coordinator, Southington
schools continue to be recognized as a learning laboratory within the state of Connecticut.

The district’s middle schools went through an extensive long-term feasibility study that resulted
in specifications that will serve youngsters with a state-of-the-art education for many years to
come. Detailed facility planning was built around the core of the middle school teaming
concept. In addition, extensive Grade 8 rigor and relevance work was analyzed by school
leaders and the Board of Education aligning students to better transition from middle school to
Southington High School.

Southington High School continued to implement the recommendations from the 2010 self-study
done by the New England Association of Schools and Colleges. Significant leveling changes
will be in place for all students for the 2012-2013 school year. Tn addition, the Board of
Education enthusiastically endorsed an expanded selection of Advanced Placement (AP) courses
and continued to support the regionalization of Alta, the district’s Alternative High School.

The district’s public report card remained impressive at all levels with student achievement
measuring well above state average in nearly all annual tests. The 2011-2012 school year found
students in Grades 3-8 being measured with their peers throughout the state by their performance
on the Connecticut Mastery Test and students in Grade 10 taking the Connecticut Academic
Performance Test.

Partnerships were highlighted by school and town officials continuing to collaborate on the
closing of the present Board of Education administrative building and the renovation of North
Center School. Innovative, cost saving planning will result in the 49 Beecher Street property
being sold, and the Board of Education administrative staff moving with town offices into the
now empty North Center School.
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School alliances were, once again, expanded as stakeholders did extraordinary work to support
school funding and student safety. The 2011-2012 school year found every Grade 4 youngster
being offered multiple authentic learning opportunities at Camp Sloper as the Southington
Education Foundation underwrote a Science, Technology, Engineering, and Mathematics
(STEM) initiative. In addition, the Southington Education Foundation supported classroom
innovation with gifts in excess of $25,000.

The safety umbrella for students was widened with both statf and Board members remaining
active in the Southington’s Town-wide Effort to Promote Success (STEPS) and with the
Southington Drug Task Force.

Through private donations, the school board launched their Grade K-12 Before School Breakfast
Program to all students.

Celebration was continuous throughout the year as students were recognized on the state,
regional, and national level. Staffrecognition was highlighted by Justin Mirante, the Technology
Department Chair at Southington High School, being chosen as the district’s “Teacher of the
Year” and the staff member who will represent Southington in Connecticut’s state competition.
The district also celebrated the performance of 13 employees with its annual Profiles in
Professionalism Program and ended the year recognizing scholarship and leadership of students,
staff, and parents by celebrating the Scholars” Luncheon at Southington High School and hosting
the second annual Parent Volunteer Luncheon.

Due to the continued sluggish economy, the Southington Board of Education worked hard to

maintain and enhance cost-saving and cost-avoidance measures that allowed the Board to present

to elected officials a nearly flat funded operational plan for 2012-2013 school year. The Board

continued to be recognized throughout the state for innovative practice. Their work included:

e  Contracting the services of a grant writer who has brought numerous awards into the
district;

o  Encouraging community members to assist with funding by embracing the Southington
Education Foundation;

e Moving from “conversation to practice” with cost savings pertaining to shared services as
the Municipal Center is set to open in July 2012;
Empowering parent groups to assist with cultural and enrichment opportunities;
Re-negotiating a three-year contract with the Southington AFSCME (Secretaries,
Custodians, Maintenance and Food Service) bargaining group that resulted in a zero percent
(0%) increase to their wage schedule for the 2011-2012 school year.

Southington can be any town or community in Connecticut or this nation. However, it is not.
Southington remains a very special community that demonstrates public school support by
electing intelligent community leaders who truly care about the well-being of 7,000
youngsters...one student at a time.
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ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT OF CURRICULUM AND INSTRUCTION

Curriculum, Instruction, and Learning: 2011-12:
The summer of 2011 resulted in administrative planning for “Leading Continuous Improvement”

throughout the Southington Public Schools. The district Mission Statement drove our work:
Students engage in a range of educational experiences to become informed, adaptive problem-
solvers who effectively communicate, rise to challenges, and are committed to improve
themselves and their communities. We successfully merged the 1999 and 2010 versions of the
Common Core of Teaching (CCT) with our Mission Statement. This resulted in administrators
using the same rubric for classroom observations including informal walk-through visits. This
consistency ensured that the district mission was fully implemented within all learning
environments.

The book, The Orange Revolution, formed the basis of retreat professional development
discussions about how one leadership team has the ability to transform an organization.

Each school further developed their Continuous School Improvement Plans based primarily upon
the result of the Connecticut Mastery Test (CMT) and the Connecticut Academic Performance
Test (CAPT). Plans were translated from district to school to classroom. Teachers created and
implemented individual professional growth plans based upon both formal and informal data and
those plans formed individual teacher’s goals for 2011-12. Improvement plans also included
themes of school safety and community outreach.

The district continued partnerships with Columbia Teachers College, Capital Region Education
Council (CREC), State Education Resource Center (SERC) and the Center for Educational
Change. Through these partnerships, teachers and administrators benefitted from professional
development in the areas of English-Language Arts and Mathematics Common Core learning,
Scientifically Researched Based Instruction/Early Intervention (SRBI-EIP), and Systems
Change. We remained a site for Columbia Teachers College with K-5 classes once again
forming the basis for the successful implementation of the Readers and Writers Workshop
models of instruction. Middle school English-Language Arts teachers joined with social studies
teachers to discover ways to improve the integration of both subjects. Similar high school work
began during this school year.

Students benefitted from a multitude of hands-on science learning experiences that ranged from
creating science projects to trips to Camp Sloper for an outdoor learning classroom. Teachers
volunteered to participate to create science lessons that will be implemented at Camp Sloper as a
result of a partnership with the Southington YMCA and the Southington Education Foundation.

Southington High School continues to implement recommendations from the NEASC report. As
such, many committees have been formed for the purpose of creating teacher leaders,
implementing a successful early intervention program, condensing from four to three academic
levels, and studying the use of time within the high school day. High school world language
staff has reached out into the elementary schools to pilot “language exposure programs” in two
settings. The high school continues to represent a comprehensive learning experience for all
students.
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Transition Committee:

The work of the Grade 8 to 9 Transition Committee expanded to include topics related to
English-Language Arts. We held three “Transition Talks” meetings that resulted in partnerships
with all Grade 8 and Grade 9 teachers.

Extended Day Kindergarten Program:
An Extended Day Kindergarten Program was created this year that resulted in 60 district children

attending one of two schools for the equivalent of a full day experience. Preliminary results
show that this intervention practice greatly enhanced the readiness levels of all who were invited
to participate.

Technology Learning:
Technology learning continued as all teachers and administrators continued to learn about how to

incorporate current technology into learning environments. Through creative grant writing, the
generosity of a community sponsor, and Board of Education funding, we are increasing and
improving the technology that will be found within all classrooms. Our Technology Department
continued to offer professional development to all staff on a variety of computer programs and
uses. As a result of the work of the Technology Department, a majority of Grade 3 teachers
piloted a computerized report card for the last marking period.

Professional Rounds:

Professional Rounds continued this year with the goal of visiting classrooms using our newly
developed observational tool that merged the Mission Statement with the CCT. Our content
focus was in the area of writing as this continues to be a primary content improvement area
across the district.

Summary:
There are many highlights of the 2011-12 school year that may not be reflected in this general

overview. However, the reader should know that a true highlight for the Assistant
Superintendent of Schools for Instruction and Learning as I completed my first year in this role is
that there is a healthy sense of pride and team that exists within our district. Everyone wants to
do what is best for all students in all settings. We truly have a professional staff.

Instructionally Looking Ahead: 2012-13:
The following themes are examples of 2012-13 initiatives for the 2012-13 school year:

e  Administrative Retreat — Focus on Common Core State Standards.

e  Teacher professional development on Common Core State Standards in areas of English-
Language Arts and Mathematics.

Teacher Professional Growth Plans focused on Common Core State Standards.
Transition Talks Grade 8 and Grade 9 for teachers of mathematics.

Computerized Progress Reports for all K-5 students.

Planning for Centralized Student Data Collection System.

Initial discussion about All-Day Kindergarten.

Planning for new assessments in spring of 2015.

Standardization of SRBI-EIP processes K-12.

Differentiation of instruction for all levels of students within all K-12 settings.
Improved curricular alignment between the district’s Alternative High School (Alta) and
Southington High School.

e  Standards-based Report Cards for middle schools.
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BUSINESS OFFICE

The Business Office has accomplished the following items during the 2011-2012 school year.

Contract Negotiations:
The Director of Business and Finance worked closely with the Southington Board of Education

negotiating team and the Board Attorney in contract negotiations with the American Federation
of State, County and Municipal Employees (AFSCME) Local 1303 (Custodians, Secretaries,
Maintenance and Food Service Employees), AFSCME Local 1303-140 (Nurses) and United
Public Service Employees Union (Paraprofessionals). We have signed three-year contracts with
both AFSCME groups that will expire on June 30, 2014. The paraprofessional negotiations will
continue into the summer months of 2012.

Payroll - Employee Portal:

In December of 2011, our Payroll Office, along with our Technology Department, opened the
Employee Portal link on our Alio™ financial software system. This portal allows employees to
view paychecks and W-2 information online along with access to their attendance records. The
Payroll Office no longer prints direct deposit remittances, which allowed for a savings in
supplies.

Per Pupil Expenditures:
The building level per pupil allocations were reviewed with a committee of principals in an
effort to allocate the funds based on educational need for the 2012-2013 budget year.

Grant Management:
The Southington Public Schools continue to benefit from the work of Mrs. Chris Boulanger as

the District Grant Writer. Her success has added to grant management responsibilities of the
Business Office. We also serve as a resource for the grant application questions. The Business
Office is happy to continue assisting in this role because our students are the true beneficiaries
from the grant funds we receive.

School Lunch and Breakfast Program:
The Breakfast Program has expanded district-wide and the Business Office continues to work

with the Food Service Director and Bread for Life to look at ways to increase participation.

The School Nutrition Standards for the National School Lunch and Breakfast Program are
changing as of July 1, 2012. Time was spent this spring familiarizing ourselves with the
changes. The School Board approved a twenty-five cent (25¢) increase to all school lunch prices
beginning in August 0f 2012.

Budget 2012-2013:
The 2012-2013 Board of Education Operating Budget was approved with a $215,000 reduction.

The original budget included the reduction of 22 positions and all of those positions were
eliminated once the budget was adopted. Although our staff has been reduced, we were
fortunate to continue all of existing programs in the Southington Public School district.
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OPERATIONS OFFICE

Construction:

Facility Advisory Committee:

The Superintendent’s Facility Committee met to review short and long term building needs
of'the town into the fall of 2011.

Borghesi Building and Engineering Company of Torrington entered into an agreement with
the town to purchase the North Center School and property. In turn, they would develop the
office space for the Board of Education administration offices and several town departments.
Occupancy is scheduled for the summer of 2012. The agreement allows for a multiple year
lease with the option for the town to purchase back the building and site at a future time.

With the planned move of school district offices, Realty 3/Carroll & Agostini was hired by
the Town Council to broker the 49 Beecher Street property. The building was constructed as
an elementary school in 1911 and sits on 1.76 acres.

Middle School Projects:

The Education Specifications for DePaolo and Kennedy Middle Schools were revised to
reflect the $15 million budget reduction, and approved by the Southington Board of
Education on August 18, 2012.

The November 1, 2011 referendum question to approve $85 million to “Renovate-as-New”
expansions of both middle schools passed with a vote of 4,859 in favor and 2,284 no votes.

The Building Committee for the projects was established in January 2012.

Seventeen Construction Manager Firms responded to the town’s Request for Proposals
(RFP). Newfield Construction of Hartford was hired for both projects in May 2012.
Newfield Construction had recently completed the Plantsville and South End Elementary
School projects in a Construction Manager role.

Twenty-four architectural firms responded to the town’s Request for Proposals (RFP).
Fletcher Thompson, Inc. was the successful firm and was hired in June 2012. Fletcher
Thompson, Inc. had recently completed the Plantsville Elementary School “Renovate-as-
New” project.

The town purchased 1043-1045 South Main Street in June 2012. The purchase of 1.16 acres
that cost $260,000 will add needed space to the Kennedy Middle School site.

Kelley Parking Lot:

The reconstruction of Kelley Elementary School parking lots, playground and site sidewalks
were funded by the town with a budget of $244,800. Work began immediately following the
last day of school.
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Clean Energy Program:

e The town, through the Connecticut Clean Energy Communities Program, eamed a 2KW
Solar PV System. The system will be installed at the Vocational Agriculture Center at
Southington High School. The system will produce power for building use as well as
providing a learning experience to students.

Building Maintenance — Health and Safety:

e On October 29, 2011, an ecarly snowstorm “Storm Alfred” brought down trees and power
lines throughout the region. All district schools were closed for five days due to lack of
power and needed site cleanup.

e The district switched to a “Green Cleaning” line of custodial products to meet current Public
Act No. 09-81 requirements. The district also standardized hand soaps, hand towels and
toilet tissue for all sites.

e In June 2012, the town was notified that a federal “Safe Routes to School” grant award of
$498,500 was approved. This funding will be used to provide additional sidewalk areas for
students attending DePaolo Middle School.

e Inmid-April 0f 2012, the district, along with Redflex Traffic Systems, began a pilot program
using cameras on five school buses to track the red light violations by motorists.
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PERSONNEL OFFICE

The Personnel Office continues to provide the necessary services to obtain the most “highly
qualified” staff in order to support our student population, as well as support current staff in all
aspects of their employment. The goal of the department is to provide these services in a
friendly, professional “customer service” manner. During 2011-2012, we completed our first
full year with our new online application system. The new system eliminated the problems we
were encountering with the previous system and is very user-friendly for both on the applicant
and administrator.

Some specific work that was accomplished within the Personnel Office includes:

Administrative Hiring:

Spring 2012 was a very busy time in the Personnel Office. This year, we had four building level
administrators retire. The spring was spent reviewing over 335 applications for four positions,
preparing documentation for and participating in hiring committee interviews. The committees
consisted of administrators, teachers and parent representatives from each effected school. With
such a large pool to draw from the decisions were difficult; but, I feel that through this lengthy
process the best candidates were presented to the Board of Education for their final interview and
decision.

Team Program:
This year, the Personnel Office, in conjunction with certified staff, was able to assist with 43

student teachers from area colleges such as Central Connecticut State University (CCSU), St.
Joseph’s College, Southern Connecticut State University (SCSU) and University of Hartford. In
addition, the TEAM Program was in its second full year. This program replaced BEST for new
teaching staff. With Southington’s election to do all module paper reviews in-house, a TEAM
Committee was established with Patricia Corvello as the district TEAM Facilitator. The TEAM
Committee met several times during the year to review and accept or reject new teacher
submissions. The State of Connecticut provided a rubric for the “readers” to follow to determine
if the submitted module was acceptable. Once the student teacher completed the necessary
modules, they were eligible for the next step in the certification process.

Internships:
As we try to do each year, this year we placed 11 interns from the University of Bridgeport and

Quinnipiac University within our schools. As well as assisting as substitute teachers, they also
worked closely with principals on special projects. With the changed requirements for
certification, these interns are also completing their student teaching requirements with us. The
goal of the university in this program is to give the student a broad experience base as they
pursue their degree in education.

Substitute Scheduling:
Again, this year was particularly difficult in the area of substitute coverage. Over the past few

years, obtaining an adequate level of available substitutes has been difficult as many surrounding
towns pay a higher per diem rate. Each year the Personnel Office re-builds our substitute
teaching pool as many of our substitutes are hired as permanent teaching staff, which reflects
well on the caliber of substitutes that we are utilizing.
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Substitute Training:
We continue to hold an annual Substitute Teacher Training in August. During this three-hour

session, current and new substitutes were walked through Title IX training, State Mandated
Reporting criteria, dress code, and procedural expectations. In addition, they view the mandated
“Bloodborne Pathogen and Food Allergy” videos.

Cohort Meetings:
The 2011-2012 school year was the fifth year of our new teacher cohort meetings. From these

meetings, we have obtained valuable information and established a practice of open
communication with our new teachers.

Workers’ Compensation:
The Personnel Office continues to coordinate all Workers’ Compensation issues. The office is

working with CIRMA to insure accuracy and timely reporting of all employee accidents in the
workplace. In addition, the Safety Committee is working with CIRMA to obtain training for our
administrators to better investigate accident causes and solutions.

Emplovee Newsletter:
This year, the Personnel Office produced four quarterly newsletters. All cabinet members are

contributing to the publication. We have added some new features such as a Triva Contest in the
hope that more employees will read the letter so that it a communication tool for our staff.

Unaffiliated/Non-Union, Non-Administrator Handbook:

This handbook covers staff members who are not members of a bargaining group and are not
administrators. Those included are the Executive Secretaries, Technology Analysts, Payroll
Supervisor, Maintenance Foreman, Food Services Director and Secretary, Audio-Visual
Technician and the Hall Monitors and Matrons. The last time this handbook was updated was
July 2002. 1t is currently awaiting Board of Education review.

CEU Tracking:

The CEU system is working well for recording CEU’s. We are still in the roll-out process for
allowing staff to register for their professional development online. The plan is that registration
for the November 6, 2012 Professional Development Day will be online. The State of
Connecticut Department of Education has direct access to the data on our certified staff through
the system so that when renewing Provisional or Professional Certificates all the information is
available and staff will not have to be audited as they were in the past.
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SPECIAL EDUCATION DEPARTMENT

During the 2011-2012 school year, the Special Education Department has undergone
considerable change. With a team of three Special Education Coordinators, a Senior
Coordinator, and four support staff, considerable improvements were made to provide the
highest quality educational services to our students. Specifically, the department has worked
toward goals around developing community partnerships, improving student achievement, and
improving office and department procedures.

Community Partnerships:

Community partnerships were established through a memorandum of agreement for the 2011-
2012 school year with Connecticut Mental Health Associates (CMHA) to provide increased
support, in a preventive manner, to our students with mental health concerns. Partnerships
within the town of Southington were also increased for our 18-21 year old high school students
to improve their transition from school to the community. A grass roots parents group was
established in the district this year and the Special Education Department engaged in
collaboration with them to support parent training in special education procedures and practices.

Student Achievement:

With student achievement an integral part of student success, a focus was on building the
capacity of special education and related services staff to enable and empower them to work
more succinctly and effectively with those students with academic and behavioral challenges.
Specifically, research-based interventions and data-based procedures were at the core of this
work. With national standards now in place, the Common Core Standards will remain at the
foundation of present and future district work. These standards will have implications on those
students receiving special education. To that end, special education teachers at the elementary,
middle, and high school were selected to participate in a regional work group designed especially
to address these implications. With technology a key ingredient to creating 21% century learners,
an emphasis on producing greater district-wide equity in accessing online research-based
programs related to explicit literacy instruction, and on increasing the use of appropriate assistive
technology equipment and software by students was encouraged and supported.

Budget and Compliance:
Throughout the year, efforts to streamline the processes involved in managing the special

education budget and the provision of services were stressed. Emphasis was also on compliance
with the State of Connecticut regulations for special education and the federal regulations of the
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA) and Section 504 of the Americans with
Disabilities Act (ADA).

School Readiness:

The Special Education Department has reason to celebrate. Some highlights at the early
elementary level involve school readiness. Special education was integrally involved with the
Southington “Community Conversation” from the conceptual level to implementation. A
change to the location of the Family Resource Center of Southington has allowed for
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centralizing its services at Hatton Elementary School. This new structure allows for more
continuity with programming and a single location from which staff can develop materials and
programs. In addition, the Family Resource Center will now be located in the same building as
the district preschool, allowing for increased collaboration between the two staffs.

Middle School Level:

At the middle school level, there is increased participation by middle school students with
special needs in school related activities such as Drama Club, Bowling Club and Environmental
Club. There is sustained growth of middle school students’ participation in local and regional
Unified Sports events. The Second Annual Unified Sports Banquet was held in June at the
Manor Inn to honor typical peers and exceptional learners together. Co-teaching partnerships
continue to be strong at middle school level. The first year implementation of an alternative
district-wide middle school program for students with significant needs, housed at J. F. Kennedy
Middle School, has been successful and expansion of the program is planned.

High School Level:
At the high school level, transition services have been expanded and a pilot program for our 18-

21 year old population of students has been hugely successful. Through the diligent of work of
high school educators and the district Grant Writer, substantial grant funds were secured from
the Community Foundation of Greater New Britain and the Calvanese Foundation. These funds
will enable us to purchase a vehicle to improve transition programining in the community.

System-wide:
The district was very fortunate to have educators from the Netherlands visit in October to learn

more about the education system in the United States. These international visitors were hosted
by middle and high school administrators to tour their schools, visit classrooms, and talk to the
staff. The visitors were particularly interested in how special education works here, as their
education system differs substantially.

Summary:

The Special Education Department will continue to make the changes necessary for students to
be successful and lifelong learners. Continued focus will be on targeted professional
development for special education and related services staff to meet the unique needs of those
students receiving special education. Emphasis on finding creative ways to engage families and
the town and school communities in this process will be encouraged. Focus will also be on
interaction and collaboration between general and special education in a preventative way to
meet the needs of students early on in their school career thus preventing the need for more
intensive services later.
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TECHNOLOGY OFFICE

The 2011-2012 school year included many improvements in technology. Powerschool 7 was a
major update that allows parents to create a single sign-on to access information for their
children. New technologies were installed including a state of the art World Language Lab at
Southington High School and through the leasing agreement, all new computer equipment was
purchased at Hatton and Strong Elementary Schools. The infrastructure upgrade was completed
and all schools are now connected via fiber. The Southington Public Schools website was
upgraded and has improved communication between Southington Public Schools and the
community through many enhancements including the “Superintendent’s blog.”

PowerSchool 7:

The PowerSchool 7 upgrade was completed last summer. In September, the Parent Portal single
sign-on was implemented. Although we received many calls per day in the beginning, call
volume has subsided to only a few a week. Parents have appreciated the fact that they can create
their own usernames/passwords and link their children together.

State Reporting:
The Teacher-Course-Student (TCS) state reporting project was a challenge for many reasons.

First, the state shut down their system for several weeks due to the problems on their end. Next,
we had issues with our software vendor producing the file correctly. The final challenge was
getting all the information from the outplacement schools in the correct format. This was
completed late in November.

World Language Lab:
The purchase and configuration of a state of the art digital World Language Lab was completed

and is used regularly by the foreign language classes.

Middle School Education Specs:
The Middle School Education Specifications were completed and the project was passed.

Virtual Desktops/Servers:
The purchase and installation of new virtual middle school servers and deployment of over 100

virtual desktops to the middle schools and high school was completed. Students like the virtual
desktops because they are much faster than the previous computers.

New Technology at Hatton, Strong, and Southington High School:

All technology including servers, desktop computers and teacher laptops were replaced at Hatton
and Strong Schools. All homeroom computers were replaced at Southington High School. All
technologies are fully deployed and in use.

Fiber Network:
This project was completed. We now have a fiber network in all of our schools that took over
six-years to complete. This will help us prepare for the online assessments coming in 2013.
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Annual Report 2011-2012

It was another excellent year for Southington High School as we continue our journey from good
to great!

The one-year report to the New England Association of Schools and Colleges was presented and
the commission was pleased by our work in the areas of professional development, the
development of a comprehensive school improvement plan, and our work to decrease the number
of instructional levels among many other items. A two-year report is due to the commission by
October 1, 2012.

The change made to our leveling system meant changes to curriculum and the purchase of a few
new textbooks. School counselors and teachers worked with our parents and students to find the
most appropriate courses and levels for all students. Even with all of these changes to the
scheduling process, we were able to provide students with their course schedules for the 2012-
2013 school year during the first week in June.

Our work with STEPS and the creation of our own Asset Building Classroom (ABC) Team was
another significant enhancement at Southington High School. Our ABC Team developed and
worked with a group of 50 students from across the school. These students provided valuable
feedback on topics such as homework, technology in the school and preparing for success in the
educational setting. We are excited about the positive changes that this new committee of
teachers and students will bring to our learning community.

The School Improvement Team (SIT) comprised of the administrative team, department chairs
and our literacy teacher spent a great deal of time in classrooms individually and in small groups.
Well over 700 classroom visits were recorded providing our SIT with valuable information about
the quality of our programming in the building. Our practice of being present where the learning
is occurring will continue in the coming school year.

In addition to the great work outlined above, the school spent a great deal of time working on a
system of supports for our students. A committee of teachers and administrators worked hard to
develop a process for identifying students who need further support to meet academic success.
In the coming school year, teams of teachers, one at each grade level, will work with students
who present specific needs and work to provide the necessary supports to ensure student success.
As an example, a student may be identified as reading below grade level and, therefore, may be
provided additional support by our literacy teacher to increase the student’s ability to read.
While this continuum of supports and culture of success will take further time to develop, we are
encouraged by our progress to date.

58



Superintendent’s Annual Report — 2011-2012 - Southington High School Annual Report

Southington High School had much to celebrate during this school year. Four of our staff
members received the prestigious distinction as a “Profile in Professionalism” award recipient.
The superintendent of schools recognized Nancy Chiero (teacher), David Germano (assistant
principal), Jean Griglun (nurse), and Brian Palmieri (custodian) for their professionalism.
Additionally, we were notified in June that the district’s “Teacher of the Year” was our very own
Justin Mirante. Justin is a teacher and department chair for our Technology Education
Department. His hard work and dedication to students makes him an excellent choice to
represent the many great teachers in our district. During the school year, we were notified by
Learning Forward that we were selected to present at their national conference in Boston this
coming December. We will be presenting on our collaborative effort with the State Education
Resource Center (SERC) to improve the instructional practice and student achievement at
Southington High School. Mr. John Miller, president of the Band Backers, was awarded the
Order of the Blue Knight, an honor bestowed to parents and/or community members for their
amazing dedication to the our students and our school. Bryan Davis, a junior, was named one of
the top 30 scholars in Connecticut with his designation as a Governor’s Scholar. Finally, our
collaborative effort with the Chamber of Commerce called “Training for Tomorrow Today” saw
a significant increase in the number of students who worked as interns in our local businesses.
This opportunity provides valuable experience to our students in multiple professional and
vocational occupations.

We continue to celebrate great success with our co-curricular activities. Our Robotics Team
performed beautifully throughout the year capturing multiple awards including design and
engineering awards. Most significantly, the team won the First Robotics Connecticut Regional
Competition allowing them to compete at the national level in St. Louis where the team showed
very well. Our FBLA and DECA programs continued to show the state why we have the number
one Business Department in the state. Our DECA president, Emily Socha, returned from the
National DECA Competition in Utah as a National Vice President of DECA, quite an honor.
Our music programs also had a great year with a second place finish in both the State Marching
Band Competition and the Berklee Jazz Festival. Our Unified Theatre Program showed that it
was not a one-hit wonder with another inspiring performance in its second year of existence.
Our school newspaper, The Emblem, turned 100 years old this year and we were proud to
celebrate the significant accomplishments of the paper over its great history.

Our sports programs had a phenomenal year as well. Cherraine Davis was the New England
Champion for shot put with a distance of over 44 feet. Michael Smigelski found great success in
the pool beating all competitors for the State Open Championship in the 50 freestyle and was
runner-up in the state at the 100 freestyle. Travis Daly was the Class LL State Wrestling
Champion in the heavy weight division. Our girls’ volleyball team, softball team, and
gymnastics team were all runner-ups in the state championship games or meet, while our
baseball team made it to the semi-finals of the Class LL State Tournament. Our Unified Sports
Program continued to flourish and was named one of the top ten programs in the state by the
Connecticut Association of Schools Michael’s Cup Program.

As we look to the coming school year, we are excited about the foundation we built for
continued success and greatness. Our excellent teaching staff has been engaged in the secondary
reform movement and is well situated to implement the mandated changes. We look forward to
our work with Student Success Plans (SSPs) that will increase the personalization of education
for all students and parents. Essentially, our goal is to pair a certified staff member with 12-15
students. This staff member will act as another critical friend, beyond the school counselor,

59






ALTA

242 Main Street o Southington, CT 06489 Jess W. Levin
Director
Phone: (860) 628-3379
Fax: (860) 628-3458
www.southingtonschools.or

Annual Report 2011-2012

The Alta computer lab was updated at the beginning of the 2011-2012 school year with an
upgrade from 10 to 15 computers. Increased student accountability was a major focus this year
and we also revamped the Alta homework policy to further improve student achievement. The
Alta instructional staff has been significantly more involved with professional development at
the high school and now attends all department meetings and curriculum meetings. The Alta
administration is working on developing and finalizing a Life Learning curriculum that will be
presented to the Curriculum and Instruction Committee in January of 2013.

Fifteen Alta students took part in commencement ceremonies this June with two more students
slated to earn their diplomas in August, 2012. Alta students earned over 600 hours of
community service volunteering in the town of Southington this year. Alta students compiled
over 1,400 documented work hours towards earning one individual credit each. One graduvating
senior from Alta was the recipient of two scholarships for post high school studies. Alta
continues to work with Department of Children and Families (DCF), Emergency Mobile
Psychiatric Services (EMPS) and other state agencies educating students who are homeless and
in residential settings. Enrollment continues to increase and Alta ended the year with 59
students. Alta has one tuition student currently slated to attend in the fall of 2013.

Professional development and hands-on exposure to the new Common Core will be a major
focus for the 2012-2013 school year. A continued emphasis on literacy and writing in all content
areas will also be a main focus. We will continue to embrace an interdisciplinary, collaborative
approach to teaching and require creative and meaningful differentiation in all subject areas. A
continued increase in academic rigor and student accountability through assessments and
individual student performance will be demanded. We will also spend time over the summer and
in the beginning of the school year focusing on the further development and alignment of the
Alta English curriculum with Southington High School in conjunction with the work that is
being done (Grades 9-12) at the district level. Instructional coaching and the development of the
Alta Tuition Program will also be continued through Mr. Levin’s office with ongoing work and
reflection. Mr. Levin will collaborate with Mr. Mark Hill to develop a more impactful service
learning component within our current school counseling/student/transition framework.
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Broad Based Enhancements:

Joseph A. DePaolo Middle School enjoyed another successful year. Although DePaolo is due
for a renovation starting in the summer of 2013, the DePaolo staff and student body continued to
make improvements to the building. Specimen plants were donated by Jeremiah’s Gardens and
were added to our newly renovated courtyard. Additionally, our hallways were adorned with
positive posters and messages as well as student work. Plans for the summer are to purchase
picnic tables for the cafeteria patio for students to enjoy for the upcoming school year.

Celebrations:

DePaolo’s motto of “Catch Students Being Good” continued in a variety of forms. Student
academic and behavioral achievement was celebrated throughout the school year. The following
is a small sample of formal events and the respective number of students recognized.

e Honor Roll: There were 1,592 students recognized over the course of the first three
semesters. Students were identified by high honors or honors dependent on the semester
grading.

e Students of the month: There were 120 students nominated over the course of 10 months.
Students were nominated by teachers based on both academic achievement and
citizenship.

o Principal Bagel Breakfast: Nine breakfasts were held over the course of the academic
year. Students were invited to have bagels and juice while their nomination forms were
read to the audience celebrating students for academic achievement, improvement and or
citizenship. There were 270 students in all who were honored.

e Good News Cards: Over 678 students received “Good News” postcards from staft’
members.

e Gold and Platinum Reward Cards: There were 2,071 cards that were earned granting
students special privileges in and out of school.

e FEighth Grade Awards: On June 7, 2012, 137 students were honored during an evening
awards assembly

Ongoing Work:
DePaolo’s Continuous School Improvement Plan focused on data-driven differentiation. The

first workshop day in August was spent examining student data for those who just were
promoted and affirmed that the teacher imbedded interventions over the course of the year were,
in fact, indicators of success on the state standardized assessment. The second day focused on
teachers identifying students with strands of weakness and then researching the student
performance back three years. This helped staff members form a more complete picture of each
student requiring interventions. Staff goal setting documents were then based on this
information discovered.
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School Accomplishments and Student Achievements:
The collective work of the J. F. Kennedy Middle School learning community has led to the continued

growth of our instructional practices in a very significant way. Through the strong partnership we
maintain with SERC and the coaching that they provided, each of our teaching teams has successfully
refined our Scientific Research-Based Interventions (SRBI) practices. As a part of our application of the
Early Intervention Plan (EIP) process, we have utilized more effective formal assessment tools, which
have better enabled us to specifically identify learning needs for students and to better coordinate our
planning for supports. Improved collaboration among all content area teachers and math and literacy
specialists has led to a more intentional planning and implementation of Tier [, II and III supports and
interventions. A large body of formal and informal progress monitoring data indicates significant
growth for students that is closely aligned with this work. Mrs. Smith’s work with SERC in unifying the
EIP documents used district-wide has further assisted us in this as it has helped teachers better
understand the process from the K-12 perspective.

In our work to provide a safe, supportive and authentically engaging learning environment, we have
grown the ways in which we meet students’ social and emotional needs. A very significant and
successful example of this is our more intentional and formal approach to supporting STEPS through the
Asset Building Classroom initiative (ABC). The monthly school-wide focus on specific assets and the
special afterschool events that we scheduled for students, parents and staff were a great success. The
staff embraced the concept of asset building classrooms as an opportunity to make daily connections
with students. Another example would be the Kennedy “Caught Doing Good” cards that identified and
promoted positive character counts of students. The continuation of the afterschool Lego League,
Entrepreneur Club, Stock Market Club and School Newspaper Club have provided a growing number of
new challenges and opportunities for students to extend their school day and work alongside new friends
and peers. Overall participation grew significantly this year in all of our afterschool clubs. The state
and national recognition of awards for two of our students in the Stock Market Club offers evidence of
the success of these opportunities that Kennedy provides. We also expanded upon our participation in
the CIAC-sponsored Unified Sports Program by offering opportunities in an additional sport. The Best
Buddies Program, implemented this school year, offered increased opportunities for peer connections
between students with and without disabilities. The Builders Club continued this year to provide
community service opportunities to students, their work this year providing funds that purchased laptop
computers for soldiers serving overseas through the sale of yellow ribbons.

Our PTO continues to be vital to our work. Quite simply, there are many opportunities for students that

their fundraising and volunteerism provides for such as assembly programs, field trips, book fairs. Each
of our 850 students had opportunities this year that were only possible because of their unselfish work.
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The 2011-2012 school year at Derynoski School began with our new administrative team
anxious to continue the great work that was part of this community. Instructional practices were
enhanced based on the results of our CMT and benchmark data. A district and school focus was
placed in the area of written expression with teachers implementing independent writing goals
for all students and refining their Writers Workshop strategies and practices. Professional
development in this area was completed through Columbia and monitored and enhanced through
the literacy specialists. New units of study in the language arts areas were implemented with
close collaboration with the grade level teams and literacy specialists. Continued focus on early
intervention was placed in Kindergarten with Derynoski housing one of the district’s Extended-
Day Kindergarten programs. This program, along with our own extended day program, provided
a targeted group of students’ explicit instruction in individual skill areas with generalization built
into the curriculum to promote carryover in the regular classroom setting. Data indicated
significant increases in performance in all areas of literacy.

We are especially proud of our STEPS/Character Counts program this year. The goal was to
enhance our existing Character Counts program with the community STEPS initiative. This was
embraced by the entire Derynoski community. Each day, students would read the “Character Tip
of the Day” over the morning announcements. Each classroom developed a list of “Character
Tips” that would be read to the school and written on the board in the cafeteria. Teachers would
discuss this tip in their classrooms and during lunch to provide multiple opportunities for
students to reflect on it throughout the day. Student leaders were trained in the “ABC”
classroom and, along with the fifth grade student council, determined school spirit days and
became leaders for various events during the year. Student leaders were part of a STEPS team,
which is comprised of students, staff and parents. This team worked on developing practices that
target the development assets for the school. Throughout the year, students were encouraged to
give back to their community through various venues. Students initiated fundraisers and raised
over $5,000 throughout the year, which facilitated leadership skills. Students continued to eamn a
star on the “Heroes among Us” board for all of their community/school service completed.

The veterans in our community were honored in different ways throughout the year starting in
November with a celebration that included a “white table” ceremony. Students learned about the
branches of the military and the fifth grade classes had veterans speak to them about their service
to their country. The fifth grade class created a mosaic wall design that is hung in our lobby to
honor our veterans. Veterans from our Derynoski families have a ribbon in the shadow box to
honor their service to our country.

Safety was addressed this year by refining our “Code Lock” practices with the support of the
Southington Police Department. The staff and students practiced this drill at various times to
provide consistency with the procedure. New procedures and protocols were also put in place
for our fire drills with the support of the Southington Fire Department.

65



Superintendent’s Annual Report 2011-2012 - Derynoski School

The PTO also began this year with a new executive board and developed new bylaws to improve
the structure of their process. The Derynoski PTO shared a goal with the administrative team and
staff to increase technology in all classrooms. Through the Scholastic Book Fairs and various
fundraisers, SMART Boards and projectors were put in the first and third grade classes. A
$6,000 grant from the SAVISS Corporation provided funding for our second grade classes to
also receive SMART Boards and projectors. Along with this technology document cameras
were purchased for the third grade. The ongoing goal is to outfit all of the classrooms with
SMART Boards, projectors and document cameras. This is a three-year plan.

Kindergarten:
In Kindergarten, we continued our work in Readers Workshop and Writers Workshop. The

children had books in their hands the first week of school. Book bags went home every week
with "Just Right Books" for the families to read and reinforce good strategies. The children used
their "tools" to become good readers. The children published their stories on our "Publishing
Wall" where they could be shared with the children and staff, In addition, “Words Their Way,”
our Word Work program was implemented. Differentiation in all activities takes place so that all
children are challenged. Each month we focus our instruction on the different assets of the
STEPS program to ensure that the students feel good about themselves and their school. We also
worked as a team to keep our parents informed through a classroom newsletter and updates about
our curriculum, as needed. This communication proved to be essential in helping our kids move
academically as their support is necessary as we collaborate together.

Grade 1:

When the school year began, the first grade teachers spent time assessing students and using data
to drive daily instruction. We met monthly as a team to look over current data and work together
to make plans for the diverse learners in our classrooms. In Readers and Writers Workshop the
Lucy Caulken’s model of instruction was followed with added strategies incorporated to focus
on our school writing objective. Focus was placed on homogenous partnerships to expand
students’ critical thinking skills in both reading and writing. Continued enhancement of the
Growing with Mathematics Program to meet the needs of all the learners in the first grade classes
was completed throughout the year. Specific focus was placed on learning basic addition and
subtraction math facts as well as solving multiple-step real-world problems. With a focus on
non-fiction text, an integration of science and social studies was made with our language arts
block. Students enjoyed learning about an assortment of life cycles including chicks, frogs, and
insects. The town-wide STEPS initiative was embraced by the school and the first grade team.
Using the building blocks of asset development, a collective goal to achieve a positive classroom
climate where children feel accepted and cared about in our learning community was
implemented.

Grade 2:

The STEPS program is an excellent complement and enhancement to social and emotional
enrichment tools that we all have in place in our classrooms to help foster the developmental
assets. We partnered with Lowe's Home Improvement Store in a building project that tied into
our math curriculum. While continuing with our Reading and Writing Workshop models, we
successfully implemented several new units of study focusing largely on non-fiction, persuasive
writing, and different fictional genres. Students continue using writing binders to organize their
writing pieces and aid in their editing/revising skills. We continue to incorporate CBAs to
supplement the Growing with Mathematics Program and are on track to complete all units this
year.
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Grade 3:

The third grade has taken on many new initiatives throughout the 2011-2012 school year. We
have incorporated the town-wide STEPS philosophy into our classrooms, emphasizing good
character traits and working to develop assets for students to be successful. Thanks to the
generosity of our PTO, the majority of the third grade classrooms are now equipped with
SMART Boards. Teachers are beginning to develop interactive lessons in all subject areas.
Teachers, as well as students, are learning the skills necessary to be “tech-savvy” citizens of the
classroom. With writing as a School Improvement Plan focus, we have continued to revise and
implement units of instruction during the Writers Workshop. We also launched new units in this
area. In addition, third grade was privileged to participate in a two-week “Author-in- Residence”
program with story-teller Eshu Bumpus. Third graders participated in lessons focusing on the
writing process, ending by publishing their own folktales.

Grade 4:

Improving the quality of student writing across the curriculum was a major focus for this year. In
Writers Workshop, students identified individual goals to improve their writing. In addition, we
integrated the new units of study into Readers and Writers Workshop. There was a particular
focus on Nonfiction / Expository writing. Students also had to learn and develop their note-
taking skills. Throughout Readers and Writers Workshop, literacy specialists and tutors provided
small group and individual support that enhanced student learning. In addition, explicit
instruction in grammar was implemented to help students learn how to edit and revise their own
work. In mathematics, we followed the Grow with Mathematics Program pacing schedule and
worked on specific objectives within our School Improvement Plan. Students benefitted from the
support of the math tutors. Students enjoyed a hands-on approach to science inquiry. All subject
areas were enhanced with the use of the classroom SMART Boards. Improved technology access
such as Grolier and BrainPop also improved lessons and student learning. Our existing Character
Counts program was improved by incorporating the STEPS district-wide initiative.

Grade S:

In reading and writing, we implemented a new curriculum that coincides with the Common Core
Standards. This included more non-fiction reading and researched-based writing. We received
support from the literary specialists and had additional training from Columbia Teachers
College. In math, we continued to use the Growing with Mathematics Program. Additional
resources supplied by the math department were used to challenge our higher level learners. In
science, we received professional development for the Foss kit that covers the new earth, moon,
and stars unit. We continue to use the technology provided by the Thalberg Foundation across
the curriculum. The developmental asset building blocks of the STEPS program could be seen
throughout our classrooms, specifically through our Veterans Program and the Southington High
School Diversity Club, Our Veterans Program was implemented by our students and involved
their family members. In May, we invited a local veteran to discuss Veterans’ Day and
Memorial Day. In March, students from the Southington High School Diversity Club spent one
week in our classrooms sharing personal information about their cultures. Our students
participated in numerous fundraising activities to support various charities and organizations
throughout the community.
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At Flanders Elementary School, we are a diverse neighborhood school community with a strong
connection with its parents and the general community. Our school mascot is the Flanders
Falcon and our school slogan is “Soaring to New Heights.” We continue to connect with the
greater community by supporting Relay for Life, Community Soup Kitchens, YMCA Camp
Sloper and Park and Recreation programs. Our PTO supports our staff through fundraising to
enhance our instructional and cultural initiatives. This year, their hard work supported our
classroom libraries, field trips and our science lab. They also promote positive family activities
through programs such as Family Picnic, Family Bingo, Read Aloud Day, Winter Read across
America Program, Ski Club, Drama Club, Scouts and Flanders Cares. Together we are planning
to provide more family-centered events at no cost for the upcoming school year.

This academic school year, our Continuous School Improvement Plan worked on student
achievement and teacher accountability in four areas: Numeracy, Literacy with a focus on
written expression, School Safety/Climate and School/Family Partnerships.

Key items and events that we are most proud of are:

e School and home connections via a Principal’s Monthly Newsletter, Kindergarten Special
Day Celebrations, Grade 1 - First Friday’s for Families, Grade 2 - Poetry Night, Grade 2 -
Reader’s Theater, Grade 3 - Mystery Readers Program, Grade 3 - Poetry Day, Grade 4 -
Reader’s Theater Presentations, Grade 4 - Writing Celebrations, Grade 5 - Writing
Celebrations, Grade 5 - Science Fair Expo, Principal Coffees, and grade level information in
monthly newsletters.

o Instructional focuses for 2011-2012 included, but are not limited to, the following: The
Southington Public Schools Mission Statement, ABC School Asset Building strategies,
exemplary classroom libraries, expanding our non-fiction collections, Writers Workshop,
Readers Workshop, focused conferences with students on comprehension strategies, student
engagement, continued work in differentiated instruction and using curriculum based data
such as DRA2, DRP and math benchmark assessments more effectively to drive instruction
on the grade level, conferencing with students regarding open ended math responses and
problem solving.

e Flanders served as a Columbia Readers Workshop Lab school (year four) hosting training for
teachers across the district in Grades 1-5. Our Flanders Elementary School staff in Grades 1
and Grade 2 hosted instructional workshops that provided training in writing to Flanders and
district staff with Flanders Elementary School students. The work of our teachers and
performance of our students, once again, brought acclaim to our school from the Columbia
staff and staff from the district.
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We are very proud of our Continued Improvement Plan process at Flanders School. We have
come full circle and have finished the school year with a draft plan to start with on the very first
day of school. Our work in student achievement will focus on differentiation, technology, safety
and Common Core of Learning. We plan to enhance our strong school/family connections with a
variety of initiatives such as Literacy Nights, Numeracy Nights, instructional celebrations,
community service projects, parent involvement in our A.L.O.T./STEPS program (Asset #26 -
Caring) and increased participation in PTO meetings.

Kindergarten:
Refinement of the Kindergarten literacy curriculum facilitated fluent connected instruction

leading to greater student achievement. Student achievement was enhanced with expanded word
lists leading to greater success at or above grade level reading expectations. Work earlier in the
year with retell strategies promoted higher levels of achievement in reading as well.

Grade 1:

The first grade continues with the implementation of Readers and Writers Workshop. A focus on
conferencing to improve fluency has been the heart of this year’s literacy work. Over 80% of the
students are reading at or above grade level as a direct result of this work. In writing, the
teaching focus has been on elaboration in writing, which has moved students to higher
achievement. Work with students in math with place value has been successful in greater student
achievement in this area.

Grade 2:

The second grade at Flanders School has continued with the implementation of Readers and
Writers Workshop. Conferring with students on specific reading comprehension strategies has
been a focus this year, particularly Author’s Message. Conferring in Writers Workshop has
focused on editing and revising. This has had successful results as well with student achievement
at or above grade level for all students.

Grade 3:

The third grade focus on literacy instruction with the support of literacy specialists involved
expanding the student’s ability to think critically with peers and to expand student work in
Author’s Message. Writers Workshop mini-lessons involving revision has led to greater student
achievement with all students at or above grade level in writing. Our math instruction
emphasized differentiation and individualized instruction to meet the needs of all students.

Grade 4:

The fourth grade focused on differentiated reading instruction through the use of mini-lessons
involving non-fiction writing. This involved research and information writing. Reading work in
Author’s Message has helped improve student reading comprehension. Students have continued
to develop the math concepts present in the Growing with Math Program through the use of
manipulatives, math tutor, math specialist, and small group instruction. New technology has
provided staff with new and innovative ways to deliver content material and involve students in
interactive practice.

Grade 5:

The fifth grade students have been active participants in Readers and Writers Workshop
including incorporating Book Clubs and Partner Talks. In writing, students published more work
focused on non-fiction text. Our students participated in a Business Building Enterprise with the
support of a Southington Education Foundation grant. Parent involvement increased this year by
helping with hands-on work in science and social studies.
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Hatton School has 111 students in the William Wrinn Preschool Center and 340 students in
Grades K-5 for a total of 451 students. We have a Speech Itinerant Program for three and four
year olds not attending our preschool. Part of our Preschool Program consists of Applied
Behavioral Analysis, a service delivered by CREC. Many of our preschool students come from
the Birth to Three Program.

Early Intervention/SRBI continues to be successful at Hatton School. We continue to collect and
analyze data to support interventions for student growth. The Hatton School Improvement Plan
has been our guide to achieving student growth. Teachers collect data, standardized tests,
benchmarks and daily work, and use this data to drive instruction. We have shown growth in
reading, writing and math. Hatton School has implemented Readers and Writers Workshop
across the grade levels, as well as the Sitton Spelling Program.

This year, we hosted five student teachers from Central Connecticut State University. This
allowed a cohort of people to offer support to teacher novices, and there was new learning for all
involved.

We had several presenters at our PTO meetings. Some topics were: Pre-Reading Skills
Workshop, “The Active Classroom”, Nutrition, our Garden Project by Paula Knight and
students, and an Anti-bullying at School and Home Workshop.

We have offered our entering Kindergarteners, and their parents, helpful workshops in reading
and math. The students have been included in classroom centers and story time. Parents have
borrowed the Reading Kits from the library, as well.

We continue the “Giving Tree” tradition, donations for the Southington Food Bank, Relay for
Life, and other charities, such as Jump Rope for Heart and the American Cancer Society. Other
student projects are Young Author’s, Science Fair, Talent Show, Field Day at Slopers and Trails
Day at Panthorn Park. We have many PTO sponsored activities including the Book Fair, Pasta
Supper, Ice Cream Social, Bingo, Grade 5 Carnival, the Family Picnic and Ski Club. We offer
Grandparent Week.

Preschool:

In the 2011-12 school year, the Wrinn Preschool Center at Hatton School serviced over 111
children. Monthly screenings, based upon parental referrals, were conducted to identify students
with possible special needs. We continued our collaboration with the Special Olympics Young
Athletes Program. This year, we included two groups of fifth graders as coaches. This initiative
proved to be mutually beneficial.
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New technology, including computers, programs and a “SMART Table” was available for
supplementing the preschool curriculum. Technology staff was able to incorporate our
handwriting program into the smart table software in collaboration with the Occupational
Therapists.

Kindergarten:
Kindergarten students have experienced a wide range of curricular learning activities this year.

With the implementation of both Readers and Writers Workshop, supported by a balanced
literacy environment, students learned various strategies and skills that they were able to apply in
many engaging activities. Some activities included shared reading, guided reading, and literacy
and writing centers. Kindergarten also integrated social studies and science into both math and
literacy areas.

Grade 1:

With the Readers and Writers Workshop instruction, students have experienced a range of
strategies and styles. In reading and writing, students explored realistic fiction, poetry, how to,
and all about books. Students showed impressive success with these different topics and their
language arts growth was astonishing this year. In science, the children learned about animal life
cycles by raising insects, frogs and chickens.

Grade 2:

The Reading Workshop model helped students continue to grow as confident readers. Students
were introduced to some new concepts within the non-fiction unit. A new unit was also
introduced: folktales, fables, and their favorite, fairy tales. This year, Grade 2 piloted a new
program called “The Active Classroom.” The second grade staff was trained to facilitate the
active classroom and students participated in physical activities throughout the day that
incorporated our Grade 2 curriculum. The goal was to incorporate more movement into their day
to improve concentration and behavior as well as build stamina for physical activity.

Grade 3:

Third grade has continued to work to improve performance in the area ot reading and developing
a love of reading across different genres. There was also a focus on writing open-ended
responses to reading passages. In writing, students have worked to become confident writers and
have created and published both narrative and non-fiction writing pieces through the Writers
Workshop. Growing with Mathematics has, once again, been the backbone of the third grade
math program with a focus on real life connections. Students learned about the state of
Connecticut and its resources in social studies. In science, students used a hands-on approach to
explore science topics such as earth materials, matter, and the human body.

Grade 4:

This year, the fourth graders continue to enjoy Readers Workshop. An emphasis on non-fiction
text enabled the students to use their reading skills in all content areas. In math, the children
have worked to solve problems involving logical reasoning and number sense. The students
continued work with fractions and interpreting decimals on number lines and graphs. This year
in science, students visited Slopers Outdoor Center in both the fall and spring. They identified
living things in pond life and soil life. They also collected soil and water samples from the pond,
wetlands, and forest habitats. In the spring, they focused their attention on finding samples of
erosion and how humans have worked to prevent both wind and water erosion.
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Grade 5:

During this school year, Hatton’s fifth grade continued to implement Readers and Writers
Workshop with a focus on Book Clubs, Mentor Texts, and conferencing in both areas. Social
studies was integrated into both workshops through the use of historical fiction. Students
worked cooperatively to create stories and comic strips based on their favorite historical time
period. Science topics became an integral part of Readers Workshop. New topics such as line
plots and exponents were added to the math curriculum.

Music:

Fifth grade chorus began preparing seven songs in September for their December holiday
concert. They performed for the school, for the residents at The Orchards of Southington and in
the evening for their family and friends. Also, fifth grade volunteers performed for the YMCA
Giving Tree Ceremony. Fourth grade chorus began preparing six songs in January for their May
spring concert. They performed for the school during the day and performed in the evening for
family and friends. Sixty (60) volunteers from our fourth and fifth grade chorus performed at
Southington High School for the Town-wide Choral Festival on June 6, 2012. First graders
performed “School Days” (A Fish Tale) in June for the entire schoal and their family and friends
in the evening. Kindergarten performed their Flag Day program for their families on June 14,
2012.

Instrumental Music:

This was another fun and exciting year for the fourth and fifth grade instrumental music students.
Students continued to use SmartMusic, the innovative music software program, both in the
classroom and at home. Several of the Hatton School musicians were invited to perform in the
Silver Star Band and Orchestra. Highly motivated musicians performed solos on the morning
announcements. Mrs. Sloves brought her “Con Brio” performing groups from DePaolo Middle
School. The Hatton Orchestra performed a joint concert with them, which helped to ease the
transition from elementary school music to middle school music. This was highly successful and
all of the orchestra students will be continuing next year.
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Annual Report 2011-2012

SCHOOL ACCOMPLISHMENTS

Kelley School, along with all schools in the district, focused on the improvement of student
achievement in three identified areas of the Continuous Improvement Plan (Reading, Writing,
and Math as well as having a safety goal). These academic areas were chosen as a focus after
reviewing our data. Teachers in all grades and all subject areas actively participated in the
implementation of these objectives. Our main focus was on writing.

Kindergarten: The kindergarten teachers used specific anchor charts for writing strategies this
year (digraphs, nonfiction, how-to, word families and conventions to name a few). They
integrated non-fiction writing with the science curriculum and had one-on-one conferencing with
students, giving them specific teaching points. They implemented the five new writing units and
planned weekly to make sure the students’ needs were met.

Grade 1: The first grade teachers used the Daily Oral Language materials to enhance the
writing program. Students wrote daily in class as well as having writing homework weekly. A
published piece of writing was showcased at the end of each writing unit.

Grade 2: Teachers in grade two gave weekly writing assignments to their students for
homework in order to stress the importance of writing both in and out of school. Teachers used
modeling even more this year during their mini-lessons. Anchor Charts were created to enhance
this modeling. Student/teacher conferences were held often in order to improve writing.

Grade 3: Teachers in grade three used the Read/Write/Think website with their students. They
gave weekly writing homework in order to involve parents in the writing process. Students
wrote Pen Pal letters and there was a focus on explicit grammar instruction.

Grade 4: Teachers in grade 4 also gave a weekly homework assignment in writing. They used
Daily Language Plus with their students. They focused on conferencing skills and gave students
meaningful teaching points. They used the Smartboard to enhance the instruction of skills.

Grade 5: Teachers in grade 5 focused on mini-lessons and conferencing with students in
writing. For homework, students wrote written responses to reading. Students wrote essays and
non-fiction written pieces in Science and Social Studies. They focused on peer revision and
editing and also used Daily Oral Language for practice of skills.
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KELLEY SCHOOL CELEBRATIONS:
e SPROUTS Mentorship Program
e  Town meetings for ABC (Asset Based Classrooms)
e Grade level Academic Celebration Events
o Implementation of district benchmark assessments, curriculum based assessments and
CMTs to monitor student progress and plan instruction
e Professional Development focused on Readers Workshop, Writers Workshop, EIP
e Grade Level Team meetings and staff meetings focused on instructional planning, review
of student work, analysis of data
e Integration of school goals into all areas including Art, Music, PE, Guidance, Library
Media.
e Literacy Specialist within our building used for ongoing professional development,
coaching teachers, modeling, assessing and instructing students
e PTO sponsored cultural arts events, fun family activities, field trips, materials for
classrooms, book fair, Donuts for Dads, Muffins for Moms
o Staff attendance at PTO meetings to showcase curriculum
e Hands-on Science projects at all grade levels
s 100% participation in Young Author’s Program
e Staff vs. Grade 5 volleyball game fundraiser for STEPS, fundraising for Relay for Life,
St. Jude’s Hospital, American Cancer Society, Bread for Life, Social Services
Further development of leveled classroom libraries
African Drumming Club
Jazz Band
Lucky Listeners Program
Summer Slide Reading Program

ONGOING WORK/SCHOOL IMPROVEMENT PLAN:

All students at Kelley School were active participants in lessons to foster their academic, social
and personal development. We had a very successful year with the implementation of our
Continuous Improvement Plan.

Staff and students at all grade levels focused on writing. We met throughout the year to analyze
data, review student work and improve instruction. We involved parents in the writing process
by giving weekly homework in writing. It was our goal to show the value of writing both in and
out of school this way.

Next year we will continue to target areas in reading, writing and math that are weak. We will
review all data in August in order to help us target specific areas. We will incorporate the
Common Core standards into our work. We will also continue to focus our efforts in making
sure that the individual needs of each Kelley student are met.

Our focus on the district mission will continue to guide us in our work at Kelley.

TEAM - Together Everyone Achieves More
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Plantsville Elementary School

Patricia Corvello 70 Church Street
Principal Southington, CT 06489
Office Telephone: (860) 628-3450
Facsimile: (860) 620-1620
www,southingtonschools.org

Annual Report 2011-2012

School Accomplishments:
Plantsville School continues its strong partnership with parents through a very active PTO. We

continue to grow as a school community with children coming from various parts of the country
and our participation in the Open Choice Program.

The staff continued working with our mutually revised Continuous Improvement Plans. Literacy
and numeracy goals are directly related to Connecticut Mastery Test objectives as well as district
benchmarks. Meetings on student data from the previous years were held and teachers aligned
their instructional goals based on the results of that data and our plans. The teachers use
differentiated instruction based on student need as they see it developing in their instructional
setting. Both Writers and Readers Workshop are fully implemented in all classrooms, as all
teachers are now fully trained in both models. Writing skills are emphasized across subject areas,
as children write in all classes every day. Small flexible groups within the math classrooms are
based on student need within strands. Areas of weakness are addressed by our literacy specialist,
special educators, and a math tutor. As our facility is full of diverse technology, development of
technology skills has been at the forefront of our professional development. Teachers and
paraprofessionals, and especially students, have used our interactive SMART Boards, document
cameras, and computer technology in all teaching areas including our library/media center and
adjacent lab. It is also not at all unusual to see children using the computer cart on wheels in the
classrooms and in the halls.

The Plantsville faculty demonstrated a strong commitment to our academic programs. Several
teachers attended the Summer Institute in Columbia’s Reading Workshop and others during the
fall. Several teachers continue their education with college courses, and many have requested to
attend professional development opportunities outside of those offered by the district. They share
important information and technique with staff afterward. One of our teachers is part of the
district Administrative Aspirant Program. Our staff also gives back professionally, serving as
cooperating teachers for young student teachers and as TEAM mentors for new teachers.

We are proud of our music, art, and physical education programs; we had two instrumental and
two vocal concerts. Physical education classes integrated literacy and numeracy goals and
science and social studies objectives with a variety of unique centers.

Plantsville School is fortunate to have a strong and supportive PTO. Along with our cultural

programs, the PTO is active in many areas, sponsoring two Book Fairs, an Ice Cream Social, and
funding our Field Day and class field trips where real life experiences are provided outside of the
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classroom. The PTO also dedicates their time as volunteers in the classrooms. With our
partnership with Calendar House, Plantsville students have continued their outreach to older
adults in the community. We were part of the district Relay for Life team as well as many other
charitable contributions for community needs.

Student Achievements:

Kindergarten: Our half-day Kindergarten students experience a balanced program of literacy
and numeracy. The highlight of their social studies curriculum was a visit to the local fire house
where they saw firsthand what these community members do for them; science and literacy was
supported by a trip to Indian Rock. Writing has shown growth throughout the year as their stories
have more detail.

Grade 1:

The first grade literacy program is highlighted in the spring by their Young Author’s Tea. Family
members are invited to an old-fashioned English tea and each child reads one of his or her pieces
of writing. Theme days focusing on winter holidays, apple day, and Thanksgiving integrate
social studies, math, language arts, and science through various center activities. There is an
international flair in Grade 1 with cultural events and an active international holiday fair. The
science curriculum was also enhanced by a visit to the Beardsley Zoo and a talk by a local
dentist.

Grade 2:

The second graders also hosted Young Author’s Tea for their families. The science curriculum
was supported by a trip to Nature’s Art in Montville, Connecticut, and by guest speakers. The
children learned firsthand about local history with a visit from the director of the Barnes
Museum. The year ended with Pirate’s Day or Beach Day, an integration of all second grade
curricular work around a common, festive theme.

Grade 3:

Individual pieces of literature were published and shared with peers. Students participated in
book clubs, created maps of Connecticut, participated in countless hands-on science experiments,
created timelines, kept journals, and worked through many math processes, reaching the abstract
stage for many topics. They also became active recyclers after the presentation at the Science
Center.

Grade 4:

There were monthly celebrations in reading and writing; through Writers Workshop, best writing
was shared with peers, and conversations about best books were held. The children’s radio
station integrated social studies regions and literacy as news and sports events were announced,
weather reports given, and editorials showed students’ skill at inference. Nature’s Day field
experience to Panthorn Park highlighted the science curriculum as did a trip to the Eli Whitney
Museum where they created their own simple and compound machines. Technology took on new
meaning for fourth graders as they created a PowerPoint presentation on different states.

Grade §:

Readers Workshop is a way of life in Grade 5. Grand conversations were held about literature,
writing was published, and book clubs were held. Every Friday, a mystery reader shared his or
her favorite book with the class. The Science Fair showed students testing a hypothesis through
experimentation and coming to valid conclusions. The trip to Sturbridge Village gave the class a
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SOUTH END ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

10 Maxwell Noble Drive
Plantsviile, CT 06479
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Sally Kamerbeek
Principal
Annual Report 2011-2012

School Accomplishments:
South End Elementary School has a strong home/school partnership with a very active PTO.

This year, over 50 parents worked to support students and staff as room mothers, classroom
helpers and literacy volunteers. In addition, the PTO coordinated the musical production “Annie
Jr.” with 78 children participating. South End parents continued their fundraising efforts to
sponsor cultural arts performances and field trips. This year, parent volunteers worked with
students to produce a monthly newspaper, SEES News. The newspaper reporters helped
administration by involving all students to choose a new mascot and design the logo. We are
proud of our new mascot, Scout the Skyhawk. In addition, several fifth grade students worked
with the music teacher to create a South End School song. Fifth grade students created a
marketing strategy for promoting the new school apparel and created order forms to purchase
items. Parents also created a publishing center to support all our student authors. South End
continues to reach out to our community. The staff and parents held several fundraising
activities to support Southington’s Relay for Life event in June ($5,000.00 was raised this year).
South End held two food drives to support Bread for Life. Students also created cards for the
troops overseas for Valentine’s Day and Memorial Day.

This year, South End School housed one of the two district Extended Day Kindergartens.
Students from Flanders, Hatton, Plantsville, South End and Thalberg were invited to participate
in this intervention program for a half-day and then attend Kindergarten at their home school.
Our first year was very successful and we look forward to continuing this program at our
building next year.

Celebrations:

Extended Day Kindergarten:

e Poetry was incorporated into thematic units of study. Specific literacy skills taught included
letters, sounds, sight words and rhyming. Students created a poetry journal that they brought
home every Friday.

Kindergarten:

e A Kindergarten Family Literacy Night was held to teach parents strategies to use when
reading with their child at home.

e The students authored many writing pieces this year. The students participated in a school-
wide assembly about being “unique.” They wrote about what they can do well and shared
their special talents with all the students.

Grade 1:

e First grade reading celebrations included the creation of character hats, reading with other
classes (Kindergarten and Grade 1), sharing a class vocabulary book and poster-making
(nonfiction) and reading outdoors.
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e Use oftechnology continues to be developed. Throughout the spring, students watched
webcams of bald eagles nesting and raising their young, as well as a black bear and her two
cubs in their den.

o The classes took two field trips this year. The trip to the production of “Seussical” was part
of an author study. A field trip to Hungerford reinforced scientific observations of animals
life cycles and classification.

Grade 2:

o This year, the second grade team met regularly to create reading and writing focus lessons.
They also worked with the literacy specialist who coached them on how to enhance their
facilitation of reading mini-lessons.

e The second grade students participated in end of unit reading and writing celebrations.
Parents were invited to the Animal Research Expert Book celebration.

e The second grade classes enjoyed a field trip to Nature’s Art where students participated in
and learned more about the rock cycle and classification of rocks and minerals.

Grade 3:

o This year, third grade held three celebrations inviting parents in to share the students’ reading
and writing accomplishments.

e The students were invited to visit the Mattatuck Museum in Waterbury. City officials
extended an invitation to South End to tour the museum and learn about Waterbury’s history.
The second field trip was to the Mark Twain and Harriet Beecher Stowe houses.

e Each year, the third grade students run Alex’s Lemonade Stand to raise money for the Alex’s
Lemonade Foundation. Students read a story of Alex to every class in the school.

Grade 4:

e The grade four teachers worked with the literacy specialist this year to enhance their skills in
teaching students how to write summaries. The intermediate team and literacy specialist
created a comprehension toolkit with lessons designed to improve this skill.

o The two classes traveled to Eli Whitney Museum to explore some hands-on activities to
support the science unit on levers and pulleys.

e The students worked on PowerPoint presentations for one of their social studies units on one
of the regions of the country.

Grade S:

o Students completed web-quests and shared their projects as part of a social studies unit on
colonial America. They wrote scripts, created recipes and PowerPoint presentations.

e Students celebrated their non-fiction science reading/writing unit by presenting “Expert”
workshops to all the intermediate students at South End School.

e Fifth graders worked in collaborative book clubs focusing on social issues.

o Students enjoyed a field trip to Sturbridge Village this spring.

Ongoing Work/School Improvement:
The South End School staff is committed to academic excellence and fostering a community of

learning where everyone is respectful, responsible and safe. Our School Improvement Plan (SIP)
is focused on improving academic achievement in literacy and numeracy. The staff monitored
student progress, collected data, and made instructional adjustments throughout the year as
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Annual Report 2011-2012

School Accomplishments:
The Strong School staff continued to implement the School’s Continuous Improvement Plan by

increasing student achievement in reading, writing, and math through the use of differentiated
instruction, small group strategy work, and best practices. The review of the district language
arts assessments and the district math benchmarks provided evidence that students have made
growth in all three areas.

This year, as part of the Readers Workshop model, the literacy specialists worked with the
primary teachers on incorporating the four parts of the mini lesson: Connection, Teaching,
Active Engagement, and Link. As part of the Columbia Teachers College Coaching Program,
the literacy specialists modeled the lesson and in subsequent lessons the classroom teachers on a
grade level taught parts of the lesson and later the whole lesson. During this process, literacy
specialists provided feedback concerning their strengths and areas that needed improvement.
The primary teachers were very appreciative of the assistance they received from the literacy
specialists. In the Writers Workshop model, the literacy specialists worked with the entire
faculty on having them review the writing continuum during CIP meetings. By knowing this
continuum, teachers’ could now identify the level of their students writing and be able to provide
their students with goals to achieve in order for them to proceed to the next level in their writing.
As a result, teachers were able to use these assessments to drive their instruction.

In math, using the Growing with Mathematics Program, teachers continued to pace their lessons
according to the district schedule. Teachers assessed students with the math benchmarks, unit
tests, and CBA's and formed small strategy groups to assist students with special needs and
provide enrichment to students who showed exceptional growth; therefore, students exhibited
progress in math.

This year, the Strong School staff implemented the Asset Building Classrooms (ABC) Program.
Each month, the staff planned activities around the asset of the month. Throughout the year,
students earned “Blue Tickets” to win a stuffed dolphin, the school mascot. In addition, the staff
created the Wee Deliver Program and students were encouraged to write letters to their peers to
foster friendships. As aresult of this program, students increased their assets in order that they
could be more successful at school. During the course of the year, staff again implemented the
Southington Education Foundation Grant, “Give Your Dog a Bone Business,” which raised
money for the Southington Animal Rescue. Also, staff acquired another grant “Good Morning
Strong School” to set up a TV station that would broadcast Strong School news weekly. In the
area of technology, staff continued to become more proficient in using the SMART Board and
the document camera. Teachers utilized Raz-Kids, Lexia, Type to Learn, and other websites to
improve academic skills. Students continued to become more proficient using word processing
and PowerPoint. Lastly, the staff worked on a school-wide enrichment project, “One Grade, One
Book”. Each grade read and discussed one book and completed a culminating activity to
enhance understanding of the story. For example, fifth grade worked on creating three movie
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trailers to provide information on the setting, plot, and characters of the book, The Watsons Go
to Birmingham. Extensive research was part of this project. Furthermore, each grade worked on
diversity, safety, and community partnerships. Lastly, in addition to field trips and cultural arts
programs, students participated in the Summer Reading Celebration, Career Day, Read Aloud
Day, Grandparents Breakfast, Celebration of Writing, Diversity Day, Field Day, National Trails
Day, Flag Day, Earth Day, Band, Orchestra, and Choral Concerts, Strong’s Authors Program,
etc. Students received many opportunities to broaden their experiences.

Student Achievements:

Kindergarten:

Wrote books during Readers Workshop, including “How to Books”.

Observed changes from caterpillars to butterflies/observed different types of fish.
Planted seeds and watched plants grow.

Put on an end of the year show for parents.

Learned about dental health with a visit from a local dentist, Dr. DiRienzo.
Learned about fire safety in the home and community from the fire department.

Grade 1:

Compared and contrasted holiday cultures around the world.

Studied different family traditions and created a Family Traditions Cookbook.
Continued a community partnership in literacy with the Southington Rotary Club.
Promoted home/school reading partnership through the use of reading logs and tools for
decoding and comprehension.

Participated in inquiry-based activities involving the life cycle of chickens, frogs,
butterflies and mealworms.

Developed enrichment through a grade level book, Stuart’s Cape.

Enriched the study of animals through a grade level read and extension activity.
Enriched the study of animals through an in-school field trip where students had hands-
on experience learning about animals.

Promoted Bicycle Safety through a presentation by a parent/police officer.

Grade 2:

The students celebrated diversity by participating in cultural arts presentation on Brazil’s
traditions/culture/celebrations presented by a Grade 2 parent.

The students explored a variety of non-fiction topics to become experts. They then wrote
books and created posters about their topics to teach others.

Complemented the FOSS New Plants Unit with a field trip to Roaring Brook Nature
Center.

Local TV meteorologist, Joe Furey, shared his knowledge of weather as a culminating
activity for our FOSS Air, Wind and Weather Unit.

In social studies, students learned the history of the Town of Southington from the Barnes
Museum and created brochures persuading others to visit the museum.

Home/school connections were bridged through family math mornings on measurement
and geometry.

Participated in safety programs on “Stranger Danger” and “Bike Safety”.
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Grade 3:

e Focused on culture and heritage during Diversity Day celebration.

e CERT presented to the students and students helped stock Southington’s food pantry.

e Learned about conservation and how to reduce, reuse and recycle.

e Implemented a School Safety Patrol to ensure the safety of all students at Strong School.

o Indian Rock came to visit and taught students about how they can help their environment.

e Enrichment activity with the book, Where the Mountain Meets the Moon, which
incorporated the multiple intelligences.

Grade 4:

o Created PowerPoint presentations and iMovie to explain the West.

e Focused on characters, biographies, and nonfiction reading themes.

e Used the SMART Board to create lessons and teaching games.

o Implemented the document camera to illustrate student work and model lessons.

e Toured Panthorn Park to visit stations and learn about wildlife and recycling.

o Addressed electrical safety through a lecture from CL&P.

Created a short comic strip based on a life of a famous person.

e Attended Sloper science field trips to learn through hands-on activities about
habitat/ecosystems.

e Developed a partnership with Activate Southington to promote healthy eating.

Grade 5:

e Problem-solving is key to our math program. Students think, speak, and write
mathematically as they apply knowledge and skills in meaningful activities.

e Participated in hands-on investigations following the Scientific Method and completed a
Science Fair Project applying skills and concepts learned.

e Interactive activities continued in the History Alive! Program and students were involved
in virtual field trips and historical debates, such as Patriots vs. Loyalists.

e SMART Board activities were integrated into all curriculum areas.

e Read A Dog’s Life, learned the purpose of the Southington Animal Rescue, received
Southington Education Foundation Grant, made gourmet dog bones and sold them to
raise money for the Dog Pound. Visited Dog Pound on June 1, 2012 to make donations.

e Parents as Partners Book Club.

e Memoir Writing Celebration.

e Strong Weekly Newspaper.

e Old Sturbridge Village Field Trip.

e  Mrs. Terry Lombardi, Board of Education member, presented a motivational speech.

Created attractive Connecticut brochures for display board after researching our state.
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Annual Report 2011-2012
Introduction:

Reuben E. Thalberg Elementary School’s student population is 425 and a Title I school. Major
emphasis has been placed on technical growth, high yield instructional strategies, asset building,
and to increase student achievement in the areas of literacy, writing and numeracy. We
concentrated on building community relationships with veterans, school/business partnerships,
and using our school resources to be innovative and enriching student learning. In keeping with
Southington’s mission statement, we engaged our students in a wide range of educational
experiences. In short, we strove to make Thalberg a place “Where Children Soar and Dreams
Take Flight.”

Technology:
o  We are completing the aim to have all 22 classrooms equipped with mounted SMART

Boards and digital cameras. It will be completed during the summer.

e  Two ELMO document cameras were purchased, bringing the total to three.

e Staff participated in technology workshops including SMART Board Interactive
Orientation, Lexia, Wikkis, Podcasts, Bookshare and Read Live.

Interventions:

e Our literacy tutor was reduced to a.5 (from a 1.5) and our math tutor was reduced to a.5
(froma 1.0). This curtailed services to students needing intensive support. We firmly
believe that our math and literacy support systems are vital to student success. Our math
tutor worked with small groups based on needs in Grades 3, 4 and 5.

o  Other interventions that were successful were: EIP, After School Book Clubs, Reading
Clinics, CMT Boost Groups {Grade 3 for six weeks).

e Data Team: To monitor student progress and to develop data-driven interventions that
meets the needs of non-mandated students.

o Primary Level Boost Groups.

e Two workshops were given for parents on how to improve their skills regarding reading
and math readiness.

e Grade 4 math workshops designed to correct Grade 4 weaknesses.

Contributing to our Community:

e Fischer House: Monetary contributions were collected for this military veteran
equivalent to the Ronald McDonald House.

e Andrew Hedberg Fund: $5,000 was collected to support our second grader’s cancer
treatment expenses.

e Connecticut National Guard Operation EIf

e Grandparents Day had a large turnout with 420 guests in attendance.
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Benevolent endeavors included:
e Monthly food drives for the Bread for Life plus over $500 in contributions, Relay for
Life, St. Jude’s Children Hospital and a Thalberg Cares clothing donation for the
community.

Ongoing Work:
e We have made substantial gains in reading, mathematics and science. We continue to
focus on writing. New initiatives for next year will include three areas: Asset building,
Connecticut Common Core and differentiation.

School Business Partnerships developed and continued:
o Southington Education Foundation — three grants were received

e Orchard Valley Garden Club - $1,000

o UConn (Master Gardeners) $250 grant

e Lowe’s - $5,000 grant/additional courtyard structures

e NOFA

e Price Chopper, Stop and Shop, Shop Rite — Tools for Schools
o TD Bank

e Southington High School Vo-Ag

o Oak Hill School

Cultural Arts donated by the PTQ: Our students were enriched by participating in:
o The #1 Most Important Anti-Bullying Message
o Fun Filled Science Show (based on state science standards)
o Beardsley Zoo

This has been a fantastic year at Thalberg Elementary School “Where children soar and dreams
take flight”. This can be asserted by the measurement of achievement, by the use of analysis of
data, and standards based curriculum. We measure our success one student at a time and the
following are some of the highlights per grade:

Kindergarten:

o Readers Workshop — The students have been developing strategies to read “Just Right”
books. Students bring these books home to practice fluency.

o  Writers Workshop was very successful this year. The Kindergarten classes participated
in several author celebrations at the completion of the units. Parents were invited to the
celebrations.

e The Mother’s Day Tea was a wonderful day to celebrate and show appreciation for
moms. The moms enjoyed all of the wonderful songs the children sang.

e After a year long celebration of good character, we culminated our learning with a trip to
Camp Sloper where the Kindergarten students participated in character building
activities.

e In science, the students compared and contrasted goldfish and guppies as well as living
and non-living things.
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Grade 1:

Our team focused on readers and writers workshop. We worked on perfecting our mini-
lessons and trying out a handful of new writing techniques. One addition that went well
was our “revising” area. We had reminders hung up on the wall of what to look for when
revising.

Toward the end of the year we focused on prompt writing by teaching it first thing in the
morning. We scored writing prompts together and gave constructive criticism to each
other.

In math, we incorporated fractions, money and other difficult math topics into our
calendar so the children would become familiar with these topics. We saw a huge
improvement on the math benchmarks.

Social studies and science were integrated into our balanced literacy program. This was
our first year having chicks in our life cycle unit. It was unbelievable and something our
students will always remember.

Our team met regularly to discuss planning and how to incorporate diversity and other
important events.

Grade 2:

CMT written open-ended responses, conferencing, using mentor texts and interactive
read alouds.

Focused on increasing the student’s independent reading stamina.

In writing, we emphasized our writing units and workshop format by creating writing
folders.

Focused on writing units and workshop format, integration of technology — TTL4.

Grade 3:

SMART Board technology was implemented and used in all classrooms.
Reading and writing workshops were an integral part of all classrooms and included the
following units:

Series book clubs (new this year and quite successful)

Mystery Unit (book partnerships)

Non-fiction Reading and Writing (including biographies)

Persuasive writing

Five paragraph essay (conservation unit)

Developing essential questions (cross curricular)

Poetry
Students were involved in recycling paper for the entire school.
Researched and completed report on Connecticut.
As part of Connecticut history unit, students went to the Capitol, toured the Capitol
building and state library; listened to the history of the state supreme court.
Students completed a web quest project with SOAR as an enrichment activity using the
mobile laptop cart.
Indian Rock came to each classroom to do a presentation on Recycling and ways to help
the environment.
Several students participated in a Math-a-thon to raise money for St. Jude’s Children’s
hospital.
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All students published books for Young Author’s Program.

Students went to the American Indian Institute in Washington, Connecticut to enhance
the social studies curriculum.

By the end of the school year, all students were reading at least 30 minutes in their “Just
Right” books (at home and at school).

Two third grade teachers’ piloted computerized standardized report cards for third
marking period (went to computer training in May). All four classes participated in this.

Grade 4:

Improvement was sought in making reader/text connections and the DRP strategies.
Math / Readers Workshop (after school CMT boost groups).

Enrichment Afterschool Programs: Math Enrichment, Lego Club — STEM focus and
Southington Education Foundation grants.

Partnership with Orchard Valley Garden Club.

Poetry Evening in the garden.

Garden Club — Everyday during recess — student volunteers.

“Toolbox for Education” from Lowe’s Grant.

“Sustaining Leaning in the Outdoor Classroom™ — Southington Education Foundation
grant.

“What’s cooking at Thalberg” - Southington Education Foundation Grant.

Asset Building Classroom involving staff, students and parents.

Grade 5:

Improving strand responses in reading focusing on non-fiction, historical fiction, and
social issues.

In writing, students composed and refined their expository writing by developing non-
fiction books, persuasive essays, memoirs, and personal narratives.

Our Growing with Math program provides students the opportunity to develop many
strategies involving real-world problems.

“The History Alive!” social studies curriculum helps students to understand our history,
culminated by our field trip to Sturbridge Village bringing history to life.

Students also continually have the opportunity to use the SMART Board to help integrate
lessons.

Students also learned about the law under Attorney Eric Daigle and participated in a
mock trial at New Britain Court House.
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Fulfilling our Mission

More than ever Southington Library is Southington’s community center and premier resource for information,
life-long learning and cultural enrichment. Southington’s citizens came to the Library in record-breaking num-
bers during the year to participate in events, attend programs and seminars, join book discussions and of course
borrow books, movies, music and more!

As a community center the Library offered our citizens the opportunity to come together in a variety of
ways. We presented over 300 programs on diverse topics ranging from creative writing to a visit from Jedi Knights
and Imperial Storm Troopers. Many of these programs were filled to capacity and, due to limited space, we could
not accommodate all those who wanted to attend. Overall attendance to adult programs was up a remarkable 37%
this year!

During the unexpected October storm the Library was a welcoming sanctuary for people who lost power,
many for 6 days or more. The Southington Library and Museum was one of the few public locations that had
power. Residents occupied every nook, cranny,
hall and floor space, recharging their electronics,
using the Wi-Fi, or just staying warm with a good
book. We set up extra tables, chairs and cell phone
charging stations to offer our friends and neighbors whatever we could during this disaster. We were also a cooling
center during the summer heat wave and a year-round destination for people who came in to sit quietly with a cup
of coffee and a book or laptop in our café.

Our life-long learning and cultural enrichment programs reached a new level of sophistication with three
new state-of-the-art programs:

= ¢Tots - a program for children ages two to three that teaches literacy and technology through
the use of iPads.

= Universal Class — on-line, college-level courses that are free to Southington library card hold-
ers. During the first four months we offered this program (March - June 2012) our patrons
enrolled in 400 courses.

= Print & Go Museum Passes - our patrons can now print passes for most of Connecticut’s best
museums and cultural attractions from their home computers.

Good old-fashioned books were also in high demand. The literary phenomenon Fifty Shades of Grey
topped the list of most requested books. Other popular best-sellers included The Help, The Hunger Games, and
Steve Jobs: A Biography.

This year marked the completion of the Library’s new parking lot. Now everyone can be sure of a safe
place to park while they enjoy all the programs, services and materials we offer on a daily basis.

Here are highlights from each department:

Your library, museum and wonderful book store are just
another example of why we feel moving to Southingfon
has been so enjoyable. - Grant and Delena S.

Adult Programming

Summer of 2011 kicked off with Reads that Refresh, our 5th Annual Adult Summer Reading Program. Over 550
enthusiastic library users participated by reading books all summer long and entering our Lucky Reader drawing.
Community cosponsors, the Southington Chamber of Commerce and Bertucci’s provided valuable discounts as
incentive to keep reading. We also created What are you Reading? - a bibliography highlighting favorite books of
prominent Southingtonians and other summer readers.

Southington Reads, always our most popular event, was a huge success. This year two books by Dr.
Yvonne Thornton ere featured: The Ditchdigger’s Daughters and Something to Prove. Dr. Thornton appeared
before an enthusiastic crowd of over 250 at the Aqua Turf and gave an inspirational talk about how she overcame
tremendous odds to become one of the most highly acclaimed doctors in her field. One of the highlights of the
event was the participation of Southington Alta students. The Alta students were encouraged to read The Ditch-
digger s Daughters and were then invited to sit with Dr. Thornton and question her about her life-experience.
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New to the marketing of the Children’s Department was a redesigned newsletter, blog and a continuous

slideshow that runs on a flatscreen monitor located above the Children’s Services Desk.

Children’s Librarian Cindy Wall wrote and received a $3000 LSTA Every Child Ready to Read grant for

a cooperative iPad/Literacy program with the Early Childhood Cooperative of Southington. This grant will allow

the li

Coll

brary to purchase four additional iPads and expand its eTots program.

lection Management

It wa

s another busy year for Collection Management. Once again, thousands of items were cataloged, processed

and sent downstairs to the public for their enjoyment. Some of the highlights of the past year are as follows:

Acquisitions: 2011-2012 was the first full year of using our new acquisitions system. The new system al-
lows patrons to place holds on items as soon as they are ordered and offers more fiscal control.

Public computers: We continue to upgrade and replace public computers as needed. This year we have
replaced all 15 thin-client public computers to allow our patrons use of Office 2010.

Changes to our collection: We have tossed out the “old” and brought in the “new” this year! Audio-
cassettes were deleted this year, with more emphasis being placed on Books-on-CD. Videos were also
weeded according to circulation history, and only the most popular remain in our collection. We are now
concentrating on DVDs and Blu-rays, and trying to replace the most popular video titles with them. More
and more patron requests appear for movies, and our
collection of television series remains very popular.
Another “new” feature is our digital media. In ad-
dition to our CDs, we now have eBooks and down-
loadable audiobooks in our catalog. Patrons can now browse for titles they want and link directly to the
Overdrive where they can download items onto their Kindles, Nooks, iPads, etc. eBooks are rapidly grow-
ing in popularity and our collection continues to grow!

We have also incorporated, at a great savings in cost, new DVD cases into the collection. These cases hold
up to 6 DVD’s in a single case, basically the same size as a single DVD case. This not only creates much
more needed shelf space, it also allows patrons to check these out at the self-checkout.

The Library staff is incredibly helpful and friendly.
| have visited bigger libraries, but Southington
staff is TOPS! - Anonymous Patron 3/3/12

We were busier than ever this year, not only with the new digital media, but also processing over 1600 DVDs! We
also cataloged 1,000 more items than in 2010. As new features are added and technology advances, Collection
Management remains one of the busiest locations in the library.

Library Statistics
Library Use Library Collection
Southington Card Holders 33,635
Circulation Transactions* Books 118,244
Books 4427786 Periodical Subscriptions 117
DVDs/Video/Blu-rays 221,377 Newpapers Subscriptions 8
Audio (music) 32,126 Books on CD 1,601
Interlibrary Loans 5,910 Downloadable Audiobooks 5,793
Periodicals 13,445 Downloadable ebooks 3,602
Reserves 19,441 Music CDs 2.224
Museum Passes 2.363 Blu-Rays/DVDs/Videos 8,153
Downloadables 4,506 Computer Games 322
Miscellaneous 11,067 Total Collection 140,064
Total Transactions 753,021
Program Attendance Children’s 12,066
Adult 3,461
Total 15,527 *Items borrowed and returned
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8 The 10th Annual Taste of Southington on the grounds of the Museum featured delicious food from lo-
cal restaurants, music provided by Southington’s own “Dave and Dave” and free tours of the Museum.
This popular event continues to grow every year and serves as an example of civic pride in Southing-
ton’s historic district.

= Participation in the Apple Harvest Festival Parade including marchers in vintage clothing accompa-

nied by a classic 1934 Lincoln Road Master.

The 7th Annual Antiques Appraisal Night.

Castle Craig Photography Club tour and photo shoot.

Victorian Valentine Exhibit and Victoria High Tea Party.

Downtown Merchants Hospitality Night and Holiday Open House.

Two Hundred Years of Hats, this exhibit included stylish ladies hats as well had gentleman’s top hats

and derbies. It was one of the most popular exhibits in the Museum’s history.

Curator Marie Secondo continued her popular “What is it?” program by bringing artifacts from the Museum into
Southington classrooms to nurture youthful curiosity. Many of the students who heard Marie’s talk visited the
Museum with their parents to learn more about our town’s history.

Professional historical conservator, Hugh Glover from the Williamstown Massachusetts Art Conservation
Center visited the Museum to review state-of-the-art procedures with Marie. This complimentary visit was made
possible due to Marie’s participation in continuing education workshops for museum curators.

Transcriptions of materials and the additions made to the Museum’s ever-growing digital files increased dramati-
cally as has conservation of the Museum’s artifacts.
= Eleven of the Museum’s 52 diaries spanning 168 years [1815 — 1973] have now been completely
transcribed.
® 1500 photographs were scanned and digitized.
m 27 pieces of sheet music were scanned and organized.

With the completion of the recent exterior paint project,a the new slate roof and the return of Victorian Gardens,
the Barnes Museum will soon be restored to its former glory.
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Southington Library & Museum Board of Directors
Fiscal Year 2011 - 2012

Chairman: Mary Ellen D’ Angelo
Vice Chairman: Frances Meade
Secretary: Heidi Bittner
Treasurer: Robert Cusano
Board Members: Patricia Kraut, Marion Manware, Kelly Nichols, Ruth Riccio, Diann Thomson

Southington Library Staff
Administration
Executive Director: Susan Smayda
Administrative Assistant/Bookkeeper: Harriet Bitar
Children’s
Department Head: Cindy Wall
Full-time Children’s Librarians: Lynn Pawloski, Shelley Holley
Part-time Children’s Librarian: Cynthia Cohen
Collection Management
Department Head/Cataloger: Billie Gaber
Assistant Cataloger: Carla Sheehan
Adult Programming Coordinator/Technical Asistant: Jeanne Chmielewski
Lending
Department Head: Michelle Lord
Full-time Library Assistant: Susan Meneo
Part-time Library Assistants: Michael Berube, Joanne Cyr, Colleen Perone, Lisa Secondo
Reference
Department Head: Gene Grass
Full-time Reference Librarians: Louise Champagne, Craig Holmes
Part-time Reference Librarian: Marion Urban
Custodian
Kurt Schwanke
Pages
Kaitlin Bellis, Mary DeBeneditto, Andrew Dziubek, Elyssa Ferens, Taylor Furgalack, Coby Goyen,
Rhianna Jacobs, Kaylie Johanns, Joanne Kelsey, Megan Leether, Nicole Lidzbarski, Valerie Mazrek,
Jade VanSchelt, Molly Virello, Anna Wyluda, Michael Zienka, Mary Zygmunt.

Barnes Museum Staff
Curator: Marie Secondo,
Part-time Curator/custodian: Joanne Cyr

Respectfully Submitted,

Susan [. Smayda, M.L.S.
Executive Director
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Finance Department
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Emilia C. Pontelinfa, Finance Divector GFelephone (860) 276-6222
Christina Sivigny, (ssistant Finance Director. Facsimile (860) 276-6252

December 26, 2012

To the Honorable Members of the Town Council, Members of the Board of Finance
and Citizens of the Town of Southington:

State law requires that all general-purpose local governments publish within six months of the close of
each fiscal year a complete set of financial statements presented in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) and audited in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America by a firm of licensed certified public
accountants. Pursuant to the requirement, issued herein is the comprehensive annual financial report of
the Town of Southington for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012.

This report consists of management’s representation concerning the financial statements of the Town of
Southington. Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability
of all of the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these
representations, management of the Town of Southington has established a comprehensive internal
control framework that is designed both to protect the government's assets from loss, theft or misuse and
to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the Town of Southington’s financial
statements in conformity with GAAP. Given that the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their
benefits, the Town of Southington’s comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to
provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial statements will be free from material
misstatement. Management asserts that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, this financial report is
complete and reliable in all material respects.

The Town of Southington’s financial statements have been audited by Blum, Shapiro & Company, P.C., a
firm of licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable
assurance that the financial statements of the Town of Southington for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012
are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis
for rendering an unqualified opinion that the Town of Southington's financial statements for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2012 are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditors' report
is presented as the first component of the financial section of this report.

163



The independent audit of the financial statements of the Town of Southington was part of a broader
federal and state mandated “Single Audit” designed to meet the special needs of federal and state grantor
agencies. The standards governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report
not only on the fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on the Town’s internal controls and
compliance with legal requirements for the federal and state grant awards. These reports are available in
the Town of Southington’s separately issued Federal Single Audit and State Single Audit reports.

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview and analysis to accompany
the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This
letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The
Town of Southington’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the independent
auditors.

PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT

Description of the Municipality

The Town of Southington was originally settled in 1698 and incorporated in 1779. It has a land area of
approximately 36.9 square miles and a population of 43,103 located in Hartford County. Found in the
geographical center of the State, Southington lies approximately 20 miles west of Hartford, the state
capital, and 9 miles east of Waterbury. Other bordering cities include Meriden, New Britain and Bristol.
Some of Connecticut’s major highways provide access to the Town. Interstate 84 bisects Southington
and Route 691 leads directly to Interstate 91. Route 10 also runs through it.

Form of Government

The Town of Southington is governed under the provisions of a charter and the Connecticut General
Statutes. Southington has had a Council-Manager form of government since 1966. The Town Council,
which is comprised of nine members who are elected for two-year terms, appoints the Town Manager.
The Town Manager is responsible for the supervision and administration of all commissions, boards,
departments, offices and agencies of the Town, except those elected by the people, appointed by the
Council, or appointed by a regional, State or Federal authority.

The Town of Southington provides a full range of services including: General Government, Public Safety,
Public Works, Health and Welfare, Human Services, Parks and Recreation, Public Library and Museum,
Planning and Development, and Education.

ECONOMY AND FACTORS AFFECTING FINANCIAL CONDITION

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is considered
from the perspective of the specific environment within which the Town of Southington operates.

Local Economy: The Town of Southington enjoys a stable economic environment with moderate growth.
The Town of Southington’s October 1, 2010 Net Taxable Grand list of $4.1 billion is an increase of $47.1
million or 1.2% over the previous year.

The Town’s Economic Development Department administers a program that focuses on retention of
existing businesses as well as the recruitment of new businesses. Since the departure of the Town’s
largest taxpayer, the Pratt & Whitney division of United Technologies Inc. in 1995, the Town has made
strong efforts to diversify its commercial and industrial tax base to avoid over-reliance on one taxpayer or
industry. As a result of these efforts, the Town has become less dependent on one taxpayer or industry as
evidenced by the Town’s top ten taxpayers representing 4.41% of the October 1, 2010 taxable Grand List
vs. 16% in the mid 1990s.
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While the “Great Recession” continued, the Town of Southington and Economic Development remained
proactive and optimistic. The Town continues its program of attraction and expansion as evidenced with
the success of Industrial Drive and the various new companies relocating to Southington, as well as the
additional space added to existing facilities. Interest continues along a range of business including
manufacturing, retail and service industries. The Town Council and administration continuously strive to
remain competitive with area towns to create opportunities for employment and tax revenue growth.

Southington received a STEAP Grant in the amount of $250,000 which was quickly put to use by
assisting with the creation of another new industrial park, the nine-lot South Farms Industrial
Park. This heavy industrial subdivision quickly led Southington’s industrial development activity
with SRS National for a 25,000 sf trucking facility.

The Southington Downtown Renaissance effort continues its progress with the addition of new
restaurants including Subway and CC Carver’s. Additionally, the town applied for a $6.3 million
state grant for contamination remediation pertaining to the Greenway Commons project. The full
amount of the request was denied, however the developers have received a $1.5 million grant
from DECD for demolition and a $3 million Urban Act Grant administered through DECD for
remediation. Meridian Development Partners continues with their interest in developing the 14
acre site.

Plantsville’s center continues its momentum with the extension of the Rails to Trails Linear Park
to Cheshire. Dean Michanczyk owner of Dean’s Stove and Spa and The Hearthstone Pub, is
putting the final touches on a new thirty-five space municipal lot. Additionally, Zingarella’s
Restaurant completed the redevelopment of 83 West Main Street further complimenting the
progress transpiring within Plantsville’s downtown area.

The Economic Development Office continues its effort to bring contaminated property back to
the tax rolls. The town received a $100,000 site assessment grant to provide an evaluation of the
former Beaton & Corbin property on North Main Street. This information shall assist with
potential remediation and redevelopment of the site. Additionally, the Town Council granted
Calco Construction a Contamination Abatement to provide for the remediation and
redevelopment of the former Forestville Industrial Plating Company (FIPCO) site on Queen
Street. The proposed redevelopment shall allow for a 30,000 square foot retail building on the
site.

In addition to the aforementioned, the following is a list of companies that have recently built, expanded

or moved into empty buildings in the Town:

Company Facility Origination
Lazy Lane Industrial LLC................ 25,000sf new construction New investment
Sno-White Power Equipment.......... 9,300 sf new construction Relocation/expansion from Plainville
Yarde Metal.......................oooo 150,000 new Mfg facility Expansion of existing company
Donati Contracting............... . 10,000 sf new facility Expansion of existing company
Strollo Brothers Towing................. 5,000 sf approved Cheshire company expanding to Southington
Malconn Towing .................. . 4,000 sf approved N. Haven company expanding to Southington

Briad Development 110 room Homewood Suites hotel
Uconn Medical Offices... 29,000 sf new facility under const
Dee Zeelce..........cooooooeeeeiii 12,300 new ice mfg facility

165

New to Southington
New to Southington
New to Southington



Relevant Financial Policies
The Town has adopted the following key financial policies:

Budgetary Control. Expenditures may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the object level.
Management cannot amend the budget. Supplemental appropriations and transfers within the same
department must be approved by the Board of Finance and, if $500 or over, the Town Council. Transfers
between departments may be made only in the last three months of the fiscal year. Monthly revenue and
expenditure actual vs. budget reports are reviewed with the Board of Finance.

Fund Balance Policy. The Town shall strive to maintain during the year, and specifically at fiscal year
end, a level of general fund unassigned fund balance, also known as accumulated surplus or the “rainy
day” fund of 9% of actual year end general fund revenues. The 9% shall be known as the Town’s “target
floor.” As of June 30, 2012, the Town has surpassed the target and achieved an 11.9% Unassigned Fund

Balance.

Utilization of Fund Balance Policy. The Town has set a goal to reduce and eventually eliminate any use
of general fund balance to balance the budget, therefore eliminating “Designated for Subsequent Year’s
Expenditures” within the Fund Balance section on the audited general fund balance sheet. This goal shall
be accomplished by the reduction of $100,000 - $125,000 per year of such a budget balancing revenue
source until the source/use is completely eliminated. For the first time in at least ten years, the Board of
Finance and Town Council have decided not to utilize any fund balance to balance the fiscal year 2012-
2013 budget. A truly balanced budget was adopted.

Debt Management Policy. The Town shall utilize the following limits to guide issuance of debt:

a. Total Direct Indebtedness shall not exceed 3% of full market valuation (equalized grand list). As
of June 30, 2012, total direct indebtedness is 1.17 %.

b. Total Direct Service shall be below 8% of general fund expenditures. As of June 30, 2012 total
debt service as a percentage of general fund expenditures is 6.24%.

c. All general obligation debt shall be structured to retire at least 25% in five years and 70% within
10 years. With the general obligation bond issue of March 2011, the Town structured the debt so
that 42.1% of total debt would be retired in 5 years and 75.3% would be retired in 10 years.

Contingency Planning Policy. The Town shall require sufficient contingency fund levels to avoid the
use of undesignated fund balance. Contingency shall not exceed 1.125% of previous fiscal year budgeted
expenditures. Due to the current economic environment, the Town approved the contingency account for
fiscal year 2012-2013 budget at $850 thousand, the same funding level as the prior year’s budget.

Investment Policy. The Town invests its idle cash and seeks to maintain safety, liquidity, and optimum
yields on its investments. Under existing State statutes, allowable investments include certificates of
deposit, money market and other short term liquid accounts, repurchase agreements, U.S. Government
securities, and investment pools which possess the aforementioned investment instruments. The Town’s
funds were primarily invested in municipal money market accounts, certificates of deposit and investment
pools containing U.S. Government securities during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. The low and
high earnings rate on money market and CDs was 0.20% and 1.75%, respectively. Investment income for
the General Fund generated $164 thousand which represents approximately .04 mills.

The Board of Finance is currently reviewing the Town’s fiscal policies, and will recommend changes as
well as implementation of additional policies.
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Long-Term Financial Planning

The Town views infrastructure maintenance and improvements as vital to future economic growth and
financial planning. By assessing needs and developing a capital improvement plan to spread the
improvements over a period of years, the tax mill rate effect can be lessened.

Starting with fiscal year 2012-2013 the Town Manager will annually prepare a Five Year Capital
Improvement Plan (CIP), which is reviewed by the Planning and Zoning Commission, the Board of
Finance and the Town Council. The approved fiscal year 2012-2013 Five Year CIP includes various road,
bridge, and sewer projects as well as major equipment purchases totaling $53.5 million for the five-year
period beginning with fiscal year 2012-13 and ending with fiscal year 2016-17.

Included in the Five Year CIP is a recommended Annual Capital Expenditure Budget for the current fiscal
year. The 2012-13 Annual Capital Expenditure Budget approved by the Town Council, and citizen
referendum when required, totaled $11.1 million and included thirteen projects.

AWARD

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Town of Southington for its
comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. This was the
twenty-first consecutive year that the Town has received this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a
Certificate of Achievement, the Town published an easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR. This
report satisfied both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our
current CAFR continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and we are
submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the daily efforts of the entire
staff of the Department of Finance. The preparation of the CAFR requires a major effort, and I would
like to express my appreciation to Christina Sivigny and Debbie Landry who assisted and contributed to
the preparation of this report. I would also like to thank the Town Council, the Board of Finance and the
Town Manager for their interest and support in planning and conducting the financial operations of the
Town in a responsible and progressive manner. Finally, the professional assistance and guidance
provided by our independent auditors, Blum, Shapiro & Company, P.C., was most appreciated.

Respectfully submitted,

Gidia, O Gt il

Emilia C. Portelinha
Director of Finance
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Finance
Town of Southington, Connecticut

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
Town of Southington, Connecticut, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, which
collectively comprise the Town of Southington, Connecticut’s basic financial statements as listed
in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Town of
Southington, Connecticut’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these
financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Town of Southington, Connecticut’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and the significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Southington,
Connecticut, as of June 30, 2012 and the respective changes in financial position and, where
applicable, cash flows thereof, for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

An Independent Member of Baker Tilly International
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In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 26, 2012 on our consideration of the Town of Southington, Connecticut’s internal
control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our
audit.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 13 and the budgetary comparison
information on pages 43 through 56 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express
an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Town of Southington, Connecticut’s financial statements as a whole.
The introductory section, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and
schedules, and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management
and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial
statements and schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial
statements and schedules are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole. The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and, accordingly, we
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

g{"’”’/ &‘f"‘“ %w/éc.

December 26, 2012
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TOWN OF SOUTHINGTON, CONNECTICUT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2012

As management of the Town of Southington, Connecticut (the Town) we offer readers of the financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Town for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. We
encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have
furnished in our letter of transmittal, as well as the Town’s basic financial statements that follow this section.

Financial Highlights

e  Ona government-wide basis, the assets of the Town exceeded its liabilities resulting in total net assets at the
close of the fiscal year of $166.2 million. Total net assets for governmental activities at fiscal year-end were
$117.5 million and total net assets for business-type activities were $48.6 million.

e Ona government-wide basis, during the year, the Town’s net assets increased by $5.3 million or 3.3% from
$160.9 million to $166.2 million. Net assets increased by $5.7 million for governmental activities and
decreased by $393 thousand for business-type activities. Governmental activities expenses and transfers out
were $146.5 million, while revenues were $152.2 million.

e At the close of the year, the Town’s governmental funds reported, on a current financial resource basis,
combined ending fund balances of $21.0 million, an increase of $1.5 million from the prior fiscal year
(Exhibit IV).

e At the end of the current fiscal year, the total fund balance for the General Fund alone was $16.7 million, an
increase of $1.6 million from the prior fiscal year. Of the total fund balance $16.1 million represents
unassigned fund balance. The unassigned General Fund balance at year-end represents 11.9% of total
General Fund revenues ($134.7 million), an increase of 1.5% from last year.

e The tax collection rate was 98.65% of the current levy, slightly less than last year’s rate of 98.75%.
Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Town’s basic financial statements. The basic
financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements,
and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains supplementary information and a statistical section.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Town’s
finances, in a manner similar to private-sector business. All of the resources the Town has at its disposal are shown,
including major assets such as buildings and infrastructure. A thorough accounting of the cost of government is
rendered because the statements present all costs, not just how much was collected and disbursed. They provide both
long-term and short-term information about the Town’s overall financial status.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of Southington’s assets and liabilities, with the difference
reported as net assets. One can think of the Town’s net assets - the difference between assets and liabilities - as one
way to measure the Town’s financial health or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may
serve as an indicator of whether the financial position of the Town is improving or deteriorating. It speaks to the
question of whether or not the Town, as a whole, is better or worse off as a result of this year’s activities. Other
nonfinancial factors will need to be considered, however, such as changes in the Town’s property tax base and the
condition of the Town’s roads, to assess the overall health of the Town.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the Town’s net assets changed during the most recent
fiscal year. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received
or paid. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flow in
some future fiscal period, for example uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave.
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Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Town that are principally supported by
property taxes, charges for services and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that
are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities).
The governmental activities of the Town encompass the Town’s basic services and include governmental and
community services, administration, public safety, health and welfare, and education. The business-type activities of
the Town include the Sewer Operating Fund.

The government-wide financial statements (statement of net assets and statement of activities) can be found on
Exhibits [ and II of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control and accountability over resources that have
been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Town, like other state and local governments, uses fund
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. The Town has three kinds
of funds:

Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of expendable resources
available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term
financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful
to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, the readers may better understand the long-term
impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the
governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The Town maintains 25 individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental fund
balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances for the
General Fund, Capital Projects Fund and the Sewer Assessment Fund, all of which are considered to be major funds.
Data from the other 22 governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation as other non-major
governmental funds.

Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the combining balance sheet and in
the combining statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances on Exhibit B-1 and B-2.

The basic governmental fund financial statements (balance sheet and statement of revenues, expenditures and changes
in fund balances) can be found on Exhibits IIT and I'V of this report.

Proprietary Funds. The Town maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to report
the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The Town of
Southington uses an enterprise fund to account for its Sewer Fund. Internal service funds are an accounting device
used to accumulate and allocate certain costs internally among the Town of Southington’s various functions. The Town
uses an internal service fund to account for its Employee Health Self-Insurance Fund.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more
detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the Sewer Enterprise Fund and the

Health Insurance Internal Service Fund.

The proprietary fund financial statements can be found on Exhibits V-VII of this report.
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Fiduciary Funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of
those funds are not available to provide services to the Town’s constituency. The Town has two agency funds: the
Student Activity Fund and the Escrow Deposit Fund. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used
for proprietary funds. The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on Exhibit VIII.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the
government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 24
through 42 of this report.

Certain required supplementary information is reported concerning the Town’s progress in funding its obligations to
provide pension benefits and other post employment benefits to its employees. This information can be found on pages
43 through 56 of this report.

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position and an
important determinant of its ability to finance services in the future. The Town’s total assets exceeded liabilities by
$166.2 million on June 30, 2012. Governmental activities assets exceeded liabilities by $117.5 million.

Business-type activities assets exceeded liabilities by $48.6 million.

TABLE 1
NET ASSETS
In Thousands
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Current and other assets $ 37,600 $ 38,106 $ 2,420 $ 2,037 $ 40,020 $ 40,143
Capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation 179,225 177,919 46,739 47,450 225,964 225,369
Total assets 216,825 216,025 49,159 49,487 265,984 265,512
Long-term debt outstanding 93,798 98,259 93,798 98,259
Other liabilities 5,487 5,913 517 452 6,004 6,365
Total liabilities 99,285 104,172 517 452 99,802 104,624
Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets,
net of debt 110,992 104,035 46,739 47,450 157,731 151,485
Restricted 631 1,032 631 1,032
Unrestricted 5917 6,786 1,903 1,585 7,820 8,371
Total Net Assets $ 117,540 111,853  §$ 48,642 $ 49,035 § 166,182 $ 160,888

By far the largest portion of the Town’s net assets reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings,
machinery and equipment, and infrastructure), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding.
The Town uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future
spending. Although the Town’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that
the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot
be used to liquidate these liabilities.
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TABLE 2
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
In Thousands

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Totals
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 8,420 $ 7,718 4355 $ 4297 $ 12,775 $ 12,015
Operating grants and
contributions 36,117 33,906 36,117 33,906
Capital grants and
contributions 6,031 6,920 6,031 6,920
General revenues:
Property taxes 99,471 97,004 99,471 97,004
Grants and contributions not
restricted to specific
purposes 1,930 1,755 1,930 1,755
Unrestricted investment
earnings 195 219 195 219
Total revenues 152,164 147,522 4,355 4,297 156,519 151,819
Program expenses:
General government 4,942 4,176 4,942 4,176
Public safety 20,436 18,711 20,436 18,711
Public works 11,082 9,402 11,082 9,402
Health and welfare 777 1,047 777 1,047
Human services 1,667 1,671 1,667 1,671
Parks and recreation 1,808 1,903 1,808 1,903
Public library 2,262 1,844 2,262 1,844
Planning and development 1,210 1,245 1,210 1,245
Education 99,324 94,128 99,324 94,128
Interest on long-term debt 2,370 1,621 2,370 1,621
Sewer 5,347 4,999 5,347 4,999
Total program expenses 145,878 135,748 5,347 4,999 151,225 140,747
Excess (deficiency) before transfers 6,286 11,774 (992) (702) 5,294 11,072
Transfers (599) (1,845) 599 1,845 - -
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets ~ $ 5,687 $ 9,929 § (393) $ 1,143 $ 5294 § 11,072

The Town’s net assets increased by $5.3 million during the fiscal year, with net assets of governmental activities
increasing $5.7 million and business-type activities decreasing by $393 thousand. The total cost of all programs and
services was $151.2 million. Our analysis below separately considers the operations of governmental and business-

type activities.
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e Several departments had aggregate cost savings creating the $1.4 million expenditure under budget. Of this
amount, $496 thousand was assigned to fiscal year 2013 for continued appropriations.

e Debt Service costs were $183 thousand less than original budget due to the Refunding of $8,745,000 of
General Obligation Bonds issued in 2011.

e The Town returned $385 thousand in the budgeted Contingency account.

Proprietary Funds

The Town’s proprietary fund provides the same type of information found in the government-wide financial statements,
but in more detail.

Net assets of the Sewer Fund at year-end totaled $48.6 million. Unrestricted net assets were $1.9 million, an increase of
$318 thousand. The Sewer Fund experienced an operating loss of $992 thousand, and $599 thousand of capital assets
were contributed from the Capital Fund.

Net assets of the Health Insurance Fund were $2.9 million. The Internal Service Fund’s unrestricted net assets
decreased by $809 thousand, from $3.7 million. The Town’s medical claims and fees came in $592 higher than
budgeted, and the IBNR came in $217 thousand higher than at 2011 fiscal year-end.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The Town’s adopted General Fund budget for 2011-2012 was $125.0 million ($124.15 million for expenditures plus
$850 thousand for contingency appropriations). In addition to the $465 thousand which was appropriated from the
Contingency Fund, the Town appropriated $586 million to the expenditure budget with corresponding revenue budget
increases, and $962 thousand was appropriated per fiscal year 2011 designation, for a total amended budget of $126.6
million. The following lists the key changes to the budget during the year:

e $962 thousand was appropriated for the amount of Fund Balance Assigned for Continued Appropriations at the
end of fiscal year 2011.

e $211 thousand was appropriated to the Board of Education Operations for preschool and special education
outside tuitions, and rent revenues received.

e $122 thousand additional was appropriated to the Accumulated Payout Account due to the retirement of seven
long-term employees and the departure of an eighth employee.

e $182 thousand was appropriated to the Fire Department for the following: $80 thousand for Overtime Pay; $52
thousand for Volunteer Firefighter; and $50 thousand for Vehicle Maintenance. These funds were needed due
to the two hurricanes, as well as other lesser events.

e Savings from various departments were combined to buy down future costs:

o $630 thousand to Capital Budget — Widen, Resurface and Drainage to cash fund FY 2013 road repairs
that will not be bonded.

o $200 thousand to the Environmental Problems Budget to cash fund the balance of the final NRD
payment and the cash call due this fiscal year for the Old Southington Landfill, as well as half of the
cash call due in fiscal year 2014. (The $420 thousand Bond Ordinance authorized and unissued will
not be utilized.)

o $100 thousand to the Capital Budget — Pondview Pump Station account for Legal Fees.

o $100 thousand to Town Hall- Building Maintenance to do some minor renovations including paint
walls and replace carpeting.

e $416 thousand additional was appropriated for the following Capital Projects: $150 thousand for the Pondview
Pump Station legal costs; $210 thousand for Widen, Resurface, and Drainage from the Water Department for
Center Street work; $23 thousand for the Drive-in Park Development; and $33 thousand for various other
projects.
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As a result of the Moody’s rating recalibration to a “Global Scale” in May of 2010, the Town’s underlying rating has
been officially changed to Aa2 from Al. (The recalibration is not a change in credit rating, but rather a change from a
municipal scale to a global scale).

The overall statutory limit for the Town is equal to 7 times annual receipts from taxation, or $696.3 million. As of
June 30, 2012, the Town recorded long-term debt of $156.7 million, well below the statutory debt limits. (This includes
the full $85 million authorized and unissued for Kennedy Middle School Renovation and DePaolo School Renovation.
Southington is eligible for School Construction Grants up to a maximum of $44.5 million on these two projects.)

Additional information on the Town’s long-term debt can be found in Note 7 of this report.

Other obligations include vacation pay and sick leave. More detailed information about the Town’s long-term
liabilities is presented in Note 7 to the financial statements.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

The Town’s unemployment rate at June 30, 2012 was 7.1%, a 0.30% decrease from the same time last year. Although
the Town’s unemployment rate increased very quickly to a fiscal year 2010 high of 8%, it is taking much longer to
descend. Leading economic indicators continue to indicate the continuation of a slow economic rebound.

The Town’s unemployment rate still compares favorably to the 8.4% for the State of Connecticut and the 8.2%
nationally. The high unemployment rates continue to be a major concern nationwide in this recessionary environment.

Elected and appointed officials considered these factors, among others, when setting the fiscal year 2012 - 2013
General Fund budget and tax rates.

As previously stated, the General Fund total fund balance increased from $15.1 million at June 30, 2011 to $16.7
million at June 30, 2012. Of this $16.7 million General Fund balance, $84 thousand was nonspendable due to form
(inventory accounts), and $496 thousand was assigned (for continued appropriations), leaving an unassigned fund
balance of $16.1 million in the General Fund at June 30, 2012. The Town feels that this level is strong enough to
withstand unexpected events which may have a negative budget impact and is within the average of comparable towns
of our size in Connecticut. This increase in the “rainy day” fund is pivotal to maintaining the Town’s enhanced bond
rating, thereby reducing the cost of the Town’s current and future debt service payments.

The Town adopted a General Fund budget of $127.7 million for 2012-2013 compared to an adopted budget of $125.0
million for 2011-2012, for an overall increase of $2.7 million or 2.2%. Of this amount, the Board of Education budget
increased $2.8 million and the Town budget decreased by $122 thousand. $1.2 million of the Board of Education
increase is to make up the fiscal cliff created by a one-time Jobs Grant received from the State of Connecticut in fiscal
year 2011-2012. The remainder of the increase is for School Operations to meet increasing personnel services,
additional special education costs and unfunded mandates. The Board of Finance initiated and the Town Council
adopted the first fully balanced budget, not utilizing any “use of fund balance” to balance the budget for the first time in
at least ten years.

If these estimates are realized, the Town’s budgetary General Fund balance is expected to remain consistent with the
June 30, 2012 level.

Costs of the Town’s business-type activities, accounted for in the Sewer Operating Fund, are expected to increase by
approximately 8.7% during fiscal year 2012-2013. The increase in expenditure budget is to pay for the higher
maintenance costs of the Denitrification Facility and the aggressive maintenance efforts of the Sewer System. The
Town has hired Tighe & Bond Inc. to put together a Facilities Plan to review the current systems in an effort to gain
better efficiencies in the Sewer’s Operations. This project includes future upgrade possibilities at the plant, as well as
process improvements such as phosphorus removal and sludge digestion, as well as a sewer rate plan.

Requests for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town’s finances for all those with an interest in
the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for

additional financial information should be addressed to Emilia C. Portelinha, Finance Director, Town of Southington,
P.O. Box 610, 75 Main Street, Southington, Connecticut 06489 or visit Southington’s website at www.Southington.org.
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TOWN OF SOUTHINGTON, CONNECTICUT

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Receivables, net

Inventory

Other assets

Capital assets:
Assets not being depreciated
Assets being depreciated, net

Total assets

Liabilities:

Accounts and other payables
Other current liabilities
Unearned revenue
Noncurrent liabilities:

Due within one year

Due in more than one year

Total liabilities

Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:
Trust purposes:
Expendable
Nonexpendable
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

JUNE 30, 2012
(In Thousands)

EXHIBIT I

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
$ 8,638 910 $ 9,548
15,308 15,308
13,305 1,510 14,815
132 132
217 217
58,778 39 58,817
120,447 46,700 167,147
216,825 49,159 265,984
5,160 360 5,520
157 157
327 327
9,099 9,099
84,699 84,699
99,285 517 99,802
110,992 46,739 157,731
91 91
540 540
5917 1,903 7,820
$ 117,540 48642  $ 166,182
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EXHIBIT III
TOWN OF SOUTHINGTON, CONNECTICUT

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2012
(In Thousands)

Nonmajor Total
Capital Sewer Governmental  Governmental
General Projects Assessments Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,722 $ 178§ 1,067 $ 1,482 §$ 4,449
Investments 14,974 334 15,308
Receivables, net 3,564 1,530 1,404 1,532 8,030
Due from other funds 832 79 911
Inventories 84 49 133
Total Assets $ 21,176 $ 1,708 $ 2471 $ 3476 $ 28,831
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts and other payables $ 2,444 $ 303§ 13§ 434§ 3,194
Due to other funds 79 832 911
Deferred revenue 1,989 1,404 328 3,721
Total liabilities 4,512 303 1,417 1,594 7,826
Fund balances:
Nonspendable 84 589 673
Restricted 1,405 153 1,558
Committed 1,054 1,140 2,194
Assigned 496 496
Unassigned 16,084 16,084
Total fund balances 16,664 1,405 1,054 1,882 21,005
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 21,176 $ 1,708 $ 2471 § 3,476 $ 28,831

(Continued on next page)
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TOWN OF SOUTHINGTON, CONNECTICUT
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30,2012
(In Thousands)

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Assets:

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets (Exhibit I) are
different because of the following:

Fund balances - total governmental funds

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds:

Governmental capital assets $ 275387

Less accumulated depreciation (96,162)

Net capital assets

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period
expenditures and, therefore, are not recorded in the funds:

Property tax receivables greater than 60 days

Interest receivable on property taxes

Assessments receivable greater than 60 days

Interest receivable on assessments

Deferred amount in refunding

Bond issuance costs

Long term receivable

Receivable from the state for school construction projects

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of
risk management to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of
the internal service funds are reported with governmental activities
in the statement of net assets.

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable
in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds:

Bonds and notes payable

Premium on issuance

Interest payable on bonds and notes
Compensated absences

Capital lease

OPEB liability

Heart and Hypertension

Landfill closure

Net Assets of Governmental Activities (Exhibit I)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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EXHIBIT 111

$ 21,005

179,225

1,989
921
1,404
26
940
217
3,900
427

2,878

(70,540)
(1,439)
(654)
(8,047)
(1,094)
(5,618)
(7,854)
(146)

117,540



EXHIBIT IV
TOWN OF SOUTHINGTON, CONNECTICUT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

(In Thousands)
Nonmajor Total
Capital Sewer Gover tal  Gover tal
General Projects Assessments Funds Funds
Revenues:
Property taxes $ 99,615 $ $ $ $ 99,615
Intergovernmental 31,838 4,016 7,523 43,377
Charges for services 2,760 535 4,512 7,807
Income on investments 164 25 6 195
Other revenues 372 5 126 503
Total revenues 134,749 4,021 560 12,167 151,497
Expenditures:
Current:
General government 3,602 8 3,610
Public safety 11,920 1,785 13,705
Public works 4,387 2,118 6,505
Health and welfare 696 17 713
Human services 842 496 1,338
Parks and recreation 1,476 29 1,505
Public library 1,382 418 1,800
Planning and development 857 857
Miscellaneous 284 284
Employee fringe benefits 8,231 8,231
Education 88,326 7,596 95,922
Debt and sundry 8,546 429 8,975
Capital outlay 7,283 7,283
Total expenditures 130,549 7,283 429 12,467 150,728
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues over Expenditures 4,200 (3,262) 131 (300) 769
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Issuance of capital leases 713 713
Transfers in 72 3,257 142 3,471
Transfers out (3,385) (86) (3,471)
Total other financing sources (uses) (2,600) 3,257 - 56 713
Net Change in Fund Balances 1,600 5) 131 (244) 1,482
Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 15,064 1,410 923 2,126 19,523
Fund Balances at End of Year $ 16,664 $ 1,405 § 1,054 $ 1,882 § 21,005

(Continued on next page)
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TOWN OF SOUTHINGTON, CONNECTICUT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012
(In Thousands)

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities:

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (Exhibit IT) are different because:
Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (Exhibit IV)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. In the statement of activitics, the cost of
those assets is allocated over their estimated uscful lives and reported as depreciation expense:

Capital outlay
Depreciation expense
Donated assets

The statement of activitics reports losses arising from the trade-in of existing capital asscts to acquire new
capital assets. Conversely governmental funds do not report any gain or loss on a trade-in of capital asscts.

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are not reported as revenues
in the funds, and revenues recognized in the funds are not reported in the statement of activities:

School building grant receipts

Long term receivable receipts

Property tax receivable - accrual basis change

Property tax interest and lien revenue - accrual basis change
Sewer assessment receivable-accrual basis change

Sewer assessment interest and lien revenue - accrual basis change

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g.. bonds, leases) provides current financial resources
to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes
the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction has any effect
on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums,
discounts and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are
amortized and deferred in the statement of activities. The details of these differences in the treatment
of long-term debt and related items are as follows:

Bond principal payments

Note principal payments

Issuance of capital leases

Capital lease principal payments

Accrued interest

Amortization of deferred charge on refunding
Amortization of issue costs

Amortization of bond premiums

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds.

Compensated absences

OPEB obligation

Heart and hypertension

Landfill post closure care and settlement

Internal service funds are used by management to charge costs to individual funds. The net
revenue of certain activities of internal services funds is reported with governmental activities.

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities (Exhibit IT)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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$ 1,482

5,643
(5.020)
713

(32)

(330)
(460)
(104)
(41)
589
(169)

5715
838
(713)
233
(219)
(89)
(19)
127

(207)

(1.038)

(635)
230

809
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EXHIBIT V
TOWN OF SOUTHINGTON, CONNECTICUT

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2012
(In Thousands)

Business-Type Governmental
Activities Activities
Sewer Internal
Enterprise Fund Service Fund
Assets:
Current:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 910 § 4,189
Accounts and other receivables 1,510
Total current assets 2.420 4,189
Capital assets, net 46,739
Total assets 49,159 4,189
Liabilities:
Current:
Accounts and other payables 360 1,311
Other accrued liabilities 157
Total liabilities 517 1,311
Net Assets:
Invested in capital assets 46,739
Unrestricted 1,903 2,878
Total Net Assets $ 48642 % 2,878

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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EXHIBIT VI
TOWN OF SOUTHINGTON, CONNECTICUT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES
IN FUND NET ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012
(In Thousands)

Business-Type Governmental
Activities Activities
Sewer Internal
Enterprise Fund Service Fund

Operating Revenues:

Fund premiums $ $ 19,725

Charges for services 4,258

Fines, penalties and interest 97

Total operating revenues 4,355 19,725

Operating Expenses:

Plant 3,338

Benefits 241 19,650

Depreciation 1,557

Administration and other 211 884

Total operating expenses 5,347 20,534

Income (Loss) before Capital Contributions (992) (809)
Capital Contributions 599
Change in Net Assets (393) (809)
Net Assets at Beginning of Year 49,035 3,687
Net Assets at End of Year $ 48642 $ 2,878

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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TOWN OF SOUTHINGTON, CONNECTICUT

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

(In Thousands)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash received from customers and granting agencies
Cash received for premiums - Town departments and agencies
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments to employees for services
Cash payments to providers of benefits
Cash payments for service fees
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Cash Flows from Capital Financing Activities:
Acquisition of capital assets
Net cash used in capital financing activities:

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities:

Operating income (loss)

Depreciation

Adjustments to reconcile operating income loss to net cash

provided by (used in) operating activities:

Decrease in accounts receivable
Decrease in inventory
Increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities

Noncash Capital Financing Activities:
Capital assets transferred from governmental funds

EXHIBIT VII

Business-Type Governmental
Activities Activities
Sewer Internal

Enterprise Fund

Service Fund

$ 4394 §
19,725
(2,541)
(931)
(241) (19,426)
(884)
681 (585)
(247)
(247) -
434 (585)
476 4,774
$ 910§ 4,189
$ (992) % (809)
1,557
39
12
65 224
$ 681 $ (585)
$ 599§

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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TOWN OF SOUTHINGTON, CONNECTICUT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

(In Thousands)
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Town of Southington, Connecticut (the Town) have been prepared in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as
applied to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted
standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The
more significant policies of the Town are described below.

A. Reporting Entity

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the reporting entity
include the primary government and its component units, entities for which the government is considered to
be financially accountable, all organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable
and other organizations that by the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary
government would cause the financial statements to be incomplete or misleading if excluded.

Related Organizations

The Town of Southington Water Company operates the only water system in the Town. The operations of
the Water Company benefit primarily Town residents. The Southington Water Company is an agency that
is independent from the Town in all administrative, operational and financial matters. The Board of Water
Commissioners is elected by the voters of the Town independently from the Town Council and they do not
report nor answer to the Town Council. The Southington Water Company may independently issue its own
debt. In prior years, the Town included the Water Company in their general obligation debt only for the
purposes of obtaining a lower interest rate for the Water Company. In 2001 legal counsel determined that
the Southington Water Company is legally capable of issuing its own debt and it is the Town’s option to
include them in their debt issuance at their discretion.

The Southington Housing Authority, Inc., a body corporate and politic, provides services primarily to Town
residents.  Although the Town appoints the governing body, the Town does not have the ability to
significantly influence the programs, projects, activities or level of services performed or provided by the
Housing Authority. The Southington Housing Authority, Inc., is not fiscally dependent on the Town.

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of activities)
report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the Town. For the most part, the effect of
interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities,
which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a given function or segment
and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a
particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are
reported instead as general revenues.
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Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds,
even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund
financial statements.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary funds financial statements. Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants
and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider
have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the Town
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period.
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However,
debt service expenditures as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and
judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, charges for services, licenses and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period.
Only the portion of special assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to be
susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period. All other revenue items are considered to be
measurable and available only when cash is received.

The Town reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the Town’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
Town, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Capital Projects Fund accounts for the financial resources to be used for the acquisition or
construction of major capital facilities.

The Sewer Assessments Fund accounts for the proceeds of sewer line assessments used to fund debt
service costs related to sewerline extension projects within the Town. The major source of revenue is
sewer assessments. The Town issues general obligation debt to fund capital improvements to sewer
lines.

The Town reports the following as a major proprietary fund:
The Sewer Fund accounts for the activities of the government’s sewer operations.

Additionally, the Town reports the following fund types:

The Internal Service Fund accounts for health benefits program for Town employees.

The Agency Funds include the student activities and the escrow deposits. They are custodial in nature
and do not involve measurement of results of operation.
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Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989 generally
are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those
standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.
Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type
activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The Town has elected not to follow
subsequent private-sector guidance.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments in lieu of taxes and other charges between certain
Town’s functions because the elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program
revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services or
privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions, including
special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program
revenues. Likewise, general revenues include property taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
Sewer Fund and of the Town’s Internal Service Fund are charges to customers for sales and services.
Operating expenses for the enterprise fund and the internal service fund include the cost of sales and
services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Town’s policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. Unrestricted funds are used in the
following order: committed, assigned then unassigned.

D. Deposits and Investments

The Town’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

State statutes authorize the Town to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury, commercial paper, corporate
bonds, repurchase agreements and certain other investments.

Investments for the Town are reported at fair value.
E. Receivables and Payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of
the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans)
or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the noncurrent portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding
balances between funds are reported as “due to/from other funds.” Any residual balances outstanding
between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide
financial statements as “internal balances.” All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an
allowance for uncollectibles. The property taxes receivable allowance of $138 is equal to 5.7% of
outstanding property taxes at June 30, 2012.
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The Town’s property tax is levied each July 1 on the assessed value as of the prior October 1 for all real
property, motor vehicles and commercial personal property located in the Town. Assessed values are
established by the Town Assessment Board at 70% of estimated market value. A revaluation of all real
property is required to be completed no less than every ten years. The Town performed a statistical
revaluation as of October 1, 2011. Despite the one year postponement of the statistical revaluation, the
Town’s next revaluation with full inspections will be October 1, 2015. The assessed value for the Grand
List of October 1, 2010, upon which the fiscal 2012 levy was based, was $4.1 billion. A 24.28 mill rate was
applied to the Grand List.

Taxes are due in two equal installments on the July 1 and January 1 following the levy date, although a 30-
day grace period is provided. Current tax collections for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 were
98.65% and 98.75%, respectively, of the adjusted tax levy. Uncollected property taxes are recorded as
receivables, net of an allowance for estimated uncollectible accounts. Unpaid taxes are liened on or before
June 30 following the due date. The revenue relating to property taxes not collected during the fiscal year
and within 60 days after the close of the fiscal year is deferred.

F. Inventories and Prepaid Items

All inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. Inventories of governmental
funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as
prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.

G. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges,
sidewalks and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities
columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as
assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $10,000 (amount not rounded) and an estimated useful
life in excess of 5 years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased
or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend
assets lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.

Property, plant and equipment of the primary government is depreciated using the straight-line method over
the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings 50
Building improvements 25
Public domain infrastructure 35-70
System infrastructure 15
Vehicles 7
Office equipment 7
Computer equipment 7
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H. Compensated Absences

A limited amount of vacation earned may be accumulated by certain employees until termination of their
employment, at which time they are paid for accumulated vacation. Sick leave may be accumulated by Fire
Department and AFSCME employees in accordance with union contracts until retirement, termination or
death, at which time they are paid for a percentage of their accumulated sick leave.

The Town’s accounting and financial reporting policy for compensated absences is based on GASB
Statement 16. Compensated absences are accrued at current salary rates and paid by the General Fund.

I.  Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements,
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental
activities, business-type activities or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond premiums and
discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective
interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of any significant applicable bond premium or discount.
Significant bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related
debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well
as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other
financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while
discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld
from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

J. Fund Equity and Net Assets

In the government-wide financial statements and in proprietary fund types, net assets are classified in the
following categories:

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt and Accumulated Depreciation - This category groups
all capital assets, including infrastructure, into one component of net assets. Accumulated depreciation
and the outstanding balances of debt that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or
improvement of these assets reduces this category.

Restricted Net Assets - This category represents the net assets of the Town which are restricted by
externally imposed constraints placed on the net assets by grantors, contributors or laws and regulations

of other governments.

Unrestricted Net Assets - This category represents the net assets of the Town which are not restricted
for any project or other purpose.

In the fund financial statements, fund balances of governmental funds are classified in five separate
categories. The five categories, and their general meanings, are as follows:

Nonspendable Fund Balance - This represents amounts that cannot be spent due to form (e.g.,
inventories and prepaid amounts).

Restricted Fund Balance - This represents amounts constrained for a specific purpose by external
parties, such as grantors, creditors, contributors, or laws and regulations of their governments.
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Committed Fund Balance - This represents amounts constrained for a specific purpose by a government
using its highest level of decision-making authority (Town Council). A resolution approved by the
Board of Finance is required to modify or rescind a fund balance commitment.

Assigned Fund Balance - For all governmental funds other than the General Fund, this represents any
remaining positive amounts not classified as nonspendable, restricted or committed. For the General
Fund, this includes amounts constrained for the intent to be used for a specific purpose by a governing
board or a body or official that has been delegated authority to assign amounts by the Town Charter.
The Finance Director is authorized to assign fund balances through the carry forward of appropriations
to a subsequent year pending approval from the Board of Finance.

Unassigned Fund Balance - This represents fund balance in the General Fund in excess of
nonspendable, restricted, committed and assigned fund balance. If another governmental fund has a
fund balance deficit, it is reported as a negative amount in unassigned fund balance.

The Town has adopted a written fund balance policy which states that the Town shall strive to maintain
during the year and specifically at fiscal year end a level of general fund undesignated fund balance,
also known as accumulated surplus or the rainy day fund at 9% of actual year end general fund
revenues. The 9% shall be known as the Town’s “target floor.”

2. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY
A. Budgetary Information

Chapter VII of the Town Charter governs the financial provisions of the Town. The Town Manager
presents the budget to the Board of Finance. After required hearings, the Board of Finance recommends its
budget to the Town Council. At the annual budget meeting held in May, the Council may adopt the
recommended budget or may reduce or increase the proposed estimated expenditures, by the required
number of votes. After completing such action, the Council shall adopt the budget by resolution and notify
the Board of Finance, the Board of Education and the Town Manager.

The Board of Finance shall, upon adoption of the budget by the Town Council, fix a rate of taxation on the
last Grand List, sufficient to produce the required revenue to preserve a balanced relation between estimated
receipts and expenditures, net of provision for other estimated revenue and cash surplus or deficit.

Additional Appropriations and Transfers:

The control level on which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations is the object level. Each
department must seek approval from the Board of Finance and/or the Town Council for any
appropriations or transfers. The Town Council, on the recommendation of the Board of Finance, may
appropriate at any time, subject to the other provisions of Chapter VII, any unappropriated and
unencumbered cash balance in the Town treasury. The Board of Finance may at any time transfer any
unencumbered appropriation balance, or portion thereof, between general classifications of
expenditures within an office, department or agency, not to exceed $500 (amount not rounded).
Transfers in excess of $500 (amount not rounded) within departments, and all transfers between
departments must be approved by the Town Council. During the last three months of the fiscal year,
the Council may, upon the recommendation of the Board of Finance, by resolution transfer any
unencumbered appropriation balance, or portion thereof, from one office, department or agency to
another to meet a pressing need for public expenditure. No money shall be expended, or obligation for
such expenditure incurred, by any department, office, board, commission or agency of the Town, except
in accordance with an appropriation by the Council.
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The budget is prepared on a modified accrual basis of accounting except for the accrual of payroll. All
appropriations lapse at the end of the budget year to the extent that they have not been expended or
lawfully encumbered. Encumbrances outstanding at the end of the year are reappropriated as continued
appropriations.  Encumbrances are established by adoption of the Town Council (continuing
appropriations). Authorized continuing appropriations are presented as reservations of fund balances
since the commitments will be honored in subsequent years. Encumbrances do not constitute
expenditures or liabilities for accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
or budgetary purposes. Only the General Fund has a legally adopted annual budget.

Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted or as amended by the Town Council. During the year,
$1,548 of supplemental budgetary appropriations from the General Fund were made, $586 from revised
revenue estimates, and $962 from continued appropriations from the prior year. Also, at year end $496
of appropriations were reappropriated.  Authorized continuing appropriations are presented as
assignments of fund balances since the commitments will be honored in subsequent years.

3. CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

The deposit of public funds is controlled by the Connecticut General Statutes (Section 7-402). Deposits
may be made in a “qualified public depository” as defined by Statute, or, in amounts not exceeding the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance limit in an “out of state bank,” as defined by the Statutes,
which is not a “qualified public depository.”

The Connecticut General Statutes (Section 7-400) permit municipalities to invest in: 1) obligations of the
United States and its agencies; 2) highly rated obligations of any state of the United States or of any
political subdivision, authority or agency thereof; and 3) shares or other interests in custodial arrangements
or pools maintaining constant net asset values and in highly rated no-load open end money market and
mutual funds (with constant or fluctuating net asset values) whose portfolios are limited to obligations of
the United States and its agencies, and repurchase agreements fully collateralized by such obligations.
Other provisions of the Statutes cover specific municipal funds with particular investment authority. The
provisions of the Statutes regarding the investment of municipal pension funds do not specify permitted
investments. Therefore, investment of such funds is generally controlled by the laws applicable to
fiduciaries and the provisions of the applicable plan.

The Statutes (Sections 3-24f and 3-27f) also provide for investment in shares of the State Short-Term
Investment Fund (STIF) and the State Tax Exempt Proceeds Fund (TEPF). These investment pools are
under the control of the State Treasurer, with oversight provided by the Treasurer’s Cash Management
Advisory Board and are regulated under the State Statutes and subject to annual audit by the Auditors of
Public Accounts. Investment yields are accounted for on an amortized-cost basis with an investment
portfolio that is designed to attain a market-average rate of return throughout budgetary and economic
cycles. Investors accrue interest daily based on actual earnings, less expenses and transfers to the
designated surplus reserve, and the fair value of the position in the pool is the same as the value of the pool
shares.

Deposits

Deposit Custodial Credit Risk - Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the
Town’s deposit will not be returned. The Town does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk.
The deposit of public funds is controlled by the Connecticut General Statutes. Deposits may be placed with
any qualified public depository that has its main place of business in the State of Connecticut. Connecticut
General Statutes require that each depository maintain segregated collateral (not required to be based on a
security agreement between the depository and the municipality and, therefore, not perfected in accordance
with federal law) in an amount equal to a defined percentage of its public<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>